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GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which
a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the
decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk
that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded
on the Main Board of the Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any
loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of China Trustful Group Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM of the Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to
the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and
belief the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading
or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report
misleading.

This report will remain on the “Latest Company Announcements” page of the GEM website (www.hkgem.com) for at least
7 qays from its date of posting and on the designated website of this Company at www.irasia.com/listco/hk/chinatrustful.
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Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present, on behalf of the Board of Directors (the
“Board”) of China Trustful Group Limited (the “Company”), the annual
report of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Overall Performance and Review

The Group has always been committed to the sale of electric vehicles
and related parts and system solutions, silverware products and
luxury products such as watches and jewelries. Looking back at
2017, given the relatively sustainable and stable economic growth in
the PRC, the tremendous support from governments in worldwide in
respect of the growth and development of the green transportation
and electric vehicle industry and our ability to identify and maintain
customers, the Group, with a long term vision to become one
of the market leaders in our businesses especially in the green
transportation and electric vehicle industry, has benefited positively
during the year ended 31 December 2017.
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During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group reported
revenue of HK$588,544,000 (2016: HK$303,268,000), representing
a 94.1% increase as compared with the same period in 2016,
and gross profit and gross profit margin of HK$201,692,000 and
34.3% respectively (2016: HK$99,671,000 and 32.9% respectively).
The Group recorded profit for the year of HK$91,682,000 (2016:
HK$24,261,000), and profit attributable to owners of the Company
was HK$77,222,000 as compared with HK$10,328,000 for the same
period last year.

The pleasant results of the Group during the year was mainly driven
by our determination and ability to accommodate the worldwide “go-
green” trend, the rapid demand for green transportation and electric
vehicles, our correct orientation of the Electric Vehicle Business
(as defined in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis”) to our target customers, and our ability to revamp our
strategies in our PRC Silverware Business (as defined in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”) and operate our
Sourcing Business (as defined in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis”).

Furthermore, | welcomed Mr. Ng Chin Ming, Stephen (“Mr. Ng”) and
Mr. Zhang Genjiang (“Mr. Zhang”) to the Board. Previously being
the Chief Operating Officer of the Group, Mr. Ng was subsequently
appointed as the Chief Executive Officer and the Executive Director of
the Company in March 2017. Meanwhile, previously being a director
of a non-wholly owned subsidiary in the PRC Silverware Business
and a substantial shareholder of the Company, Mr. Zhang was also
subsequently appointed as the Executive Director of the Company in
May 2017. He is currently the Chairman of #/L Z {Z %k = E B[R
‘~A] (iterally translated as Zhejiang Zhisin Holding Group). As both
Mr. Ng and Mr. Zhang are renowned persons in Hong Kong and the
PRC respectively, and that they both have tremendous experiences
and extensive networks in government authorities, commodities
investments, banking and treasury, and the electric vehicle and the
silverware industries, the Group believes that the re-positioning of
Mr. Ng and Mr. Zhang will undoubtedly benefit the Group positively.
Besides, the name of Company was changed from “Powerwell
Pacific Holdings Limited” to “China Trustful Group Limited” during the
year. With our new company name, our corporate image is further
strengthened which brings much advantage in facilitating our business
development.

HE2017F12A31A L FE  AEBEHEK
588,544,000 7T (20164F : 303,268,000/%5
J0) ¢ 820164 A HA4E hno4.1% + 1 EF & E
H & 5 Bl £201,692,0007% JT K34.3% (2016
F 5 Bl 599,671,000 7T %32.9%) ° A& &
8% 15 F N 4 F191,682,0007% 7T (20164 :

24,261,000 70) R ARG HEE A EIE BT A
77,222,000 7T - A [RHIRIA10,328,000#
5T e

AEERFAMSHNEESARE T2/
RIEFIEE2IRIERRR]IB SR L K
h HREXBREHTENFTREE B
BAEXK(EERIEREMN®EDI]—
81 H AR R E P A IE e E 7 A R 3R APk
BHERFEB(EERIEEER R MO
—HRBEMEEERESEH(ERRIE
BREN WA —8)HEED -

M5 RABEBEREE(RELENRE
BIEE(ERENMAEFR - HRLE
EAREEREEE  HERDTFIARE
EARARGTRARRRITEE - AW - B
SEREFERELSE —HHE2ENBAR
ZEFERARALERA - R NR201745
AEEEAARANNTES « HRENLZ
REBREBERANEFR - AREELER
SEESNATBRTENEAL  BES
SRBUT T - BRIEE - RITRER R
EDERBEEX N ALALEEERR
BTG ARERA  BREREREY
EFEMMREGHRERER o doh - A7
ZBREREZEATFEEERAT 2
BAMTEZEREERAR] - RMHEE
WEHEPHAREBEIE -SRI AR
MR EEARES ES -

ANNUAL REPORT

e\



Further details in relation to the business performance of each of the
businesses described above further elaborate in our Management
Discussion and Analysis section.

Prospects

| am delighted to present the prospects of the Group into our
three businesses: the Electric Vehicle Business, the PRC Silverware
Business and the Sourcing Business.

The overall prospect of our Electric Vehicle Business is promising and
bright despite fierce competitions emerge within the electric vehicle
and green transportation industry and counter-attacks from traditional
fuel vehicle manufacturers.

The environment protection trend simply could not be reversed.
Pursuant to the United States’ announcement of decision to withdraw
from the Paris Agreement on climate change in June 2017, China took
the lead, played the convening role in bringing together countries from
across the globe for clean energy discussion, and showed its initiative
and commitment to the Paris Agreement. The leaders worldwide are
generally confident in China taking forward the global missions to
tackle the climate change issues.

Being one of the world’s largest emitters of climate change-causing
carbon dioxide, the PRC administration is in the move to roll out
more and more anti-carbon measures and favorable policies, such as
“New Energy Vehicle Subsidy Scheme” and subsidy scheme for over
300,000 electric vehicle charging stations among the country. It also
issued <<THEEXPRHAZEEIRE>> (iterally translated as “Medium
and Long term Development Plan of the Automotive Industry”) in April
2017, which clearly delivered the message of electric vehicles being
part of the drive for the domestic industry development in future.

According to the “Global EV Outlook 2017” published by the
International Energy Agency in June 2017, the global electric car
stock surpassed 2 million vehicles in 2016 after crossing the 1 million
threshold in 2015, and that the number of global battery-powered
electric buses stock grew a double in 2016 compared to 2015. It
is believed that the tax incentives and the government subsidy and
support to the green transportation and electric vehicle industry are
indispensable for lowering the barriers to the wide adoption of electric
vehicles worldwide.
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Meanwhile, in the Group’s perspective, benefited from the
management vision of vertically-integration and the well-versed
research and development professionals and project teams, the
Group is exploring different market opportunities and creating
economies of scale. The Group believes that our competitive edge
mainly derives our ability to provide stable, safe and customised
solutions to our various customers. Furthermore, the Group sees
the penetration of electric vehicles, especially electric buses, in the
transportation industry worldwide is still very low. From year 2018
onwards, the Group will continue to align with the global trend of
going green and actively response to any anti-carbon measures and
favorable policies to be imposed by the PRC government by putting
emphasis on research and development of electric bus models which
specifically suits our customers’ needs. We will target in countries
where electric vehicles are still yet to be popularized and countries
where positive support and policies from government is received,
including countries and cities such as the PRC, Macau, Hong Kong,
and some Southeast Asian countries especially Indonesia which has
a huge population and a big demand for public buses. The Group will
endeavor to get all invaluable opportunities, and strive to become one
of the most competitive global electric vehicle, rechargeable batteries
and parts providers.
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Silver is the mineral material of the earth that people see in daily
lives. It's in jewelries, watches, food utensils and other equipment.
It is generally regarded as currency equivalents and a hedging tool.
As a result of the growing need for diversification in investment
products, investments in luxury silverware products are expected to
grow. Furthermore, silverwares can fight microbes, keep food fresh
and boost immunity.

Going forward, the Group remains optimistic about the future of
our silverware products in the PRC. We will continue to develop
and maintain strong and stable relationships with our wholesale
customers. Since late 2016, the Group has been successfully allied
with a PRC company specialised in preparation of wedding ceremony
to promote its S-collodi luxury silverwares. Furthermore, in response
to the PRC Government’s support for “Internet Plus”
Group has also developed children-related silverware products and
planned to strategically promote and sell the products through a
famous children website since late 2017. The Group anticipates more
sales with these customers in the upcoming years. Meanwhile, in
our retail operation, we maintain our flexible marketing strategies. We
will continue to diversify our silverware product mix to be sold in our
flagship stores and explore and develop the market for products with
crossover of ceramic and silverware, so as to attract more customers
and promote traditional Chinese culture.

initiatives, the

Our Group assures that, through designing and developing new
products and actively participating in different promotion channels,
such as attending the Hangzhou International Tea Expo, our S-collodi
products and our PRC Silverware Business will continue to be a
promising operation to the Group.
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It looks as though we were underprivileged in the changes from the
traditional retails sales (old economy) to new internet sales economy.
The outlook for our Sourcing Business for the coming years is
gloomy. The recovery of the global retail business of watches and
costume jewelries is yet to be seen, our line of business will be very
challenging in the future. We will continue to practise tight cost control
including reducing staff cost and overheads. We will closely monitor
the progress and will review where appropriate.

Appreciation

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this
opportunity to extend my heartfelt gratitude to all shareholders,
customers, suppliers and partners for their trust and continuous
support to the Group. | also express my sincere gratitude to all
our fellow Board members, management and employees for their
steadfast contribution, dedication, and hard work to the Group.
We will persist in developing our businesses pragmatically, seizing
different market opportunities for optimal development for the Group
and striving for the best returns for our shareholders.

Fei Jie
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2018
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Business Overview

For the year ended 31 December 2017, China Trustful Group Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) recorded blooming results for the business of the research
and development, manufacture and sale of rechargeable batteries,
electric vehicles and related products and provision of related services
(the “Electric Vehicle Business”). Besides, the Group also continued
to engage in the provision of sourcing and procurement solutions to
customers for production of watches, costume jewelries, and display
and packaging products (the “Sourcing Business”), and the retail and
wholesale of luxury brand silverware, silver utensils and luxury goods
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) (the “PRC Silverware
Business”).

The Group is fully prepared and determined to become a strong
market player in the industries that our businesses belong to,
especially the green transportation and electric vehicles industry.
Besides the change of the name of the Company from “Powerwell
Pacific Holdings Limited” to “China Trustful Group Limited”, we also
welcomed Mr. Ng to act as the Chief Executive Officer and the
executive director of the Company, and Mr. Zhang as the executive
director of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2017.
The Group is confident that, from 2018 onwards, the Group will
continue to build a strong and better corporate image and identity,
and also facilitate its future business development, grasp every
opportunity and face any new challenges.

Business Review

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group reported
revenue of HK$588,544,000 (2016: HK$303,268,000), representing
a 94.1% increase as compared with the same period in 2016,
and gross profit and gross profit margin of HK$201,692,000 and
34.3% respectively (2016: HK$99,671,000 and 32.9% respectively).
The Group recorded profit for the year of HK$91,682,000 (2016:
HK$24,261,000) and other comprehensive income of HK$25,242,000
(2016: loss of HK$14,533,000), being exchange differences arising
from translating foreign operations. Profit attributable to owners of
the Company was HK$77,222,000 as compared with HK$10,328,000
for the same period last year; whereas basic earnings per share was
HK3.66 cents (2016: HKO.67 cents).
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The Group’s selling and distribution costs and administrative
expenses, in total, increased slightly from HK$56,901,000 for the
same period last year to HK$64,202,000 during the year ended
31 December 2017.

In general, the Group’s result during the year ended 31 December
2017 has benefited from our ability to seize different opportunities
in our businesses, especially the Electric Vehicle Business and
the PRC Silverware Business. Further description of the business
performances from our businesses are described below.

The Electric Vehicle Business is comprised of two divisions namely
the battery division and the electric vehicle division. The battery
division is engaged in the manufacture and supply of rechargeable
lithium batteries, while the electric vehicle division is engaged in the
manufacture of electric vehicles for the Electric Vehicle Business.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, our revenue from the
Electric Vehicle Business was mainly derived from the selling of
rechargeable batteries, auto parts for the electric vehicles and electric
bus system solutions and provision of relevant consultancy services.
Besides securing sales orders from its existing customers, our senior
management has also been actively exploring projects in relation
to electric vehicles and electric bus system solutions with good
profitability in different countries and cities including the PRC, Macau,
Hong Kong and some Southeast Asian countries. Further details of
the market development are described below. Furthermore, during
the year ended 31 December 2017, one of the Group’s wholly-owned
subsidiaries successfully registered a World Manufacturer Identifier
from SAE International, which further strengthens the brand and
image of the Group’s electric vehicles.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group recorded
segment revenue HK$456,017,000 (2016: HK$117,283,000) in
the Electric Vehicle Business, representing 77.5% of the Group’s
total revenue (2016: 38.7%). This segment recorded gross profit
of HK$144,044,000 (2016: HK$23,334,000), segment profit of
HK$122,731,000 (2016: HK$12,574,000), and segment margin of
26.9% (2016: 10.7%).

The arena in this segment are namely, PRC, Southeast Asia, Macau
and Hong Kong.
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PRC market

The PRC market has always been the powerhouse among our Electric
Vehicle Business. Not only does the favorable environmental policies
on electric vehicles as discussed in the “Chairman’s Statement”
section facilitate investments, but the Group’s technical capabilities

and network also contribute to the extraordinary sales growth
recorded for the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, besides securing sales
orders from our existing customers in relation to sale of rechargeable
batteries and auto parts for the electric vehicles, we successfully
allied with customers who are travel bus distributors in the PRC, and
we successfully participated in and completed the design, research
and development and manufacture of over 400 electric travel buses
during year 2017.

Southeast Asia market

Besides aiming at the PRC market, the Group also takes its initiative
in focusing in countries and cities where the penetration of electric
vehicle is comparatively low. In response to the “One Belt One Road
Initiative” (— A — &) policy formulated by President Xi of the PRC,
the Group selects Southeast Asia market as one of our long term

strategic partners.

Favorable progress has been made in building customer relationship
in the Southeast Asia market, especially in Indonesia. During the year
ended 31 December 2017, our first prototype of pure electric bus
embedded with our electric bus system solution has successfully
finished its over 1,000 km trial run in Indonesia. The feedbacks on the
performance of our electric bus are positive in the Indonesian market.
In the long run, we strive to supply at least 200 electric buses per
annum in the Indonesian market.
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Other markets

Besides the PRC and the Southeast Asia markets, leveraging on our
extensive industry experience, the Group also targets cities including
Macau and Hong Kong. During the year ended 31 December 2017,
our production team performed extensive research and development
to design and produce electric buses which are tailor-made,
customerised and localised for each respective city. For instance, we
designed and produced two prototype 9.5-meter electric buses for
the Macau market which are comparatively smaller in size so as to
handle the narrow streets and tight corners of downtown Macau.

For instance, in relation to the Macau market, two prototype electric
buses have already been completed according to schedule and have
passed the approvals for Economic Commission for Europe (ECE).
They are ready for roadshow purposes in Macau, and different
customers have been reaching us in formulating attractive and
long-term sustainable contracts. While we are in good progress of
identifying our long term strategic partner, the Group is very confident
that, our relationship with potential customers established during the
2016 Macao International Environmental Co-operation Forum and
Exhibition CRFIEIRIRR & 1EEEmIE KB E) (MIECF) will provide
fruitful results to the Group in the upcoming years.

Our sales management team recognised two important consumer
trends in China: (i) as a result of the PRC government’s support for
“Internet Plus” initiatives, e-commerce, including internet sales, mobile
payment and online payment platform is playing a vital position for
every citizens in the PRGC; (i) the consumer market is becoming more
customer-oriented, and that business models with tailor-made one-
stop shopping ideas are more encouraged and welcomed.

As a result, the Group revamped its strategies to promote and
sell our luxury silverware products branded S-collodi by focusing
in developing stable and long-term relationship with its wholesale
customers and exploring potential new wholesale customers who
promotes silverware products with special themes and/or through
their online sales platforms. Our customers during the year ended
31 December 2017 included wholesale customers who engage in
the e-commerce and wedding services business. In identifying and
bonding with our wholesale customers, during the year 2017, our
sales management team put their efforts in exposing and promoting
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our products to our target customers, such as attending the
Hangzhou International Tea Expo. New products designed by our
sales team during the year included products for children’s use, such
as milk bottles, watch bottles and bracelets.

In relation to our silverware retail operations, after thoroughly
considering the matrix of target customers, store location, pricing
strategy and costs planning, we closed down stores which were
comparatively less profitable, and there were two premier stores as at
31 December 2017. Furthermore, in order to provide a comprehensive
luxury product chain to attract our retail customers, who are mainly
high-net-worth PRC individuals, we also sourced luxury products
which are not branded S-collodi and sold them in our two self-
operated retail stores.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, as a result of the
decrease in number of retail outlets, the PRC Silverware Business
recorded a slight drop in segment revenue to HK$69,252,000 from
HK$75,749,000 for the year ended 31 December 2016, representing
11.8% of the Group’s total revenue (2016: 25.0%). It recorded gross
profit of HK$44,269,000 (2016: HK$48,552,000), segment profit of
HK$40,368,000 (2016: HK$38,496,000), and segment margin of
58.3% (2016: 50.8%).

The year of 2017 was a very bad year for our Sourcing Business,
despite what was mentioned in the U.S. news about the overwhelming
results of their stock and securities markets. On the contrast, U.S.
retailers and distributors are having a difficult time in their operation.
Major stores are closing down hundreds and hundreds of their outlets
and divisions in America. Needless to say self-running distribution
outlets owned by our major brand owners customers have to
consolidate and solve their inventory problems to maintain their
cash flow and liquidity. This happened in the second half of 2017,
as a result, our revenue in watches, costume jewelries and display
businesses dropped significantly.

We have first time suffered a loss in our watches business since
inception in 1995, together with loss in other businesses, our
overall results in Sourcing Business was bad for the year ended
31 December 2017. A significant percentage of operating staff have
been already reduced with our tight cost control and cost saving
policies, we strove hard to minimise our loss and keep remained self-
liquidating and self-financing by our limited reserves.
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The segment recorded segment revenue of HK$63,275,000 (2016:
HK$110,236,000), representing 10.7% of the Group’s total revenue
(2016: 36.3%). It recorded gross profit of HK$13,379,000 (2016:
HK$27,785,000), segment loss of HK$7,269,000 (2016: segment profit
of HK$6,783,000), and segment margin of negative 11.5% (2016:
positive 6.2%), as a result of the drop in both revenue and profitability.

Financial Review

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had current assets of
HK$792,733,000 (2016: HK$278,287,000) comprising cash and cash
equivalents of HK$293,853,000 (2016: HK$127,722,000), and net
current assets of HK$540,996,000 (2016: HK$182,948,000). The
Group did not have any bank borrowings, guarantee and banking
facilities, while the Group’s other borrowings included a secured loan
amounted to HK$15,000,000 (2016: HK$15,000,000), details of which
are described in the paragraph below. As at 31 December 2017,
the Group’s equity attributable to owners of the Company increased
by HK$377,237,000 to HK$603,549,000 (2016: HK$226,312,000),
which was mainly due to the placing completed, and also the total
comprehensive income incurred by the Group during the year.

The Group’s gearing ratio represented its total borrowings (including
secured loan and convertible bonds) over the equity attributable to
owners of the Company. As at 31 December 2017, the Group had
total borrowings amounted to HK$66,444,000 (2016: HK$62,781,000),
which included a secured loan amounted to HK$15,000,000, which
was denominated in Hong Kong dollars with variable interest rate
at 1% per annum above the HKD prime lending rate published by
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited and is
fully secured by the shares charge in respect of the entire share
capital of Powerwell Pacific Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands), and convertible
bonds of HK$51,444,000 (2016: HK$47,781,000). The Group’s equity
attributable to owners of the Company as at 31 December 2017
amounted to HK$603,549,000. The Group’s gearing ratio was
therefore maintained at a low level of 11.0%, which was lower than
that at 31 December 2016 of 27.7%, as a result of the completion of
placing of new shares during the year.

Z 9 B 815 o &6 W A63,275,0007% JT (2016
£ :110,236,000/ 7T) * 1 AR E B B K A K
10.7% (20164 : 36.3%) » PR A K B F4E
T& - 5% 3813 E 13,379,000/ 7T (2016
F 1 27,785,000/ 7T) + 7 EPE187,269,0007% 7T
(20164F : 7 &B3% 716,783,000 7T ) K 7 &R F1)H
& 141.5% (20164F : 6.2%) °

B %% [0l R

R2017F12A31H A& BHE R EE
792,733,000 JT (20164F : 278,287,000/ JT)
BE IR 2 kR 2 F E %293,853,000% JT
(20164 : 127,722,000/ 7o) & it 8) & E JF A&
540,996,000 7T (20164 : 182,948,000/ L) ©
REBEWEAERITER - BERERITHE -
Mz @B EMER - BEEHEMAER15,000,000
7 7T (20164F : 15,000,000/87T) * HFFIERTE
Ml - 2017512 A318 - AEEZ ARRHE
A JFE{G 2R 3 AN 377,237,0005%8 7T £603,549,000
7 7T (20164F 1 226,312,000/ 7T) * £ Z B AL
EEBETKURANEBRFATEEZEK
WIBEEFTE -

AEBzEEBBHLERHEBRERE(R
REERERRABRKRES) BRURQF#E
A A ML #E & - R2017F12A318 - A &
% 75 & 3 48 %566,444,0007 JT (20164 :
62,781,000/ 7T) * BIEAB LR ER G T
E 315,000,000 7Tt (Jh i B & LB ELR
TERARBEMZ T HEBEFENFF X
12 5t /2 - I B Powerwell Pacific Limited (Z
ARREBEAZBESEIMK Lz —HE2EN
BAAN 22 RAEEANRGOERIEEZE
ER) RATA R & 551,444,000 7T (2016 F ¢
47,781,000 JT) > M2017612A318 * A &
E 2 7R~ R A A JE G # % /603,549,000
B Al AEBzEEBELRERT
11.0% 2 B K /K F - € KR2016F128310 2
27.7% * YRR B S RO N FERTTAFTE -

ANNUAL REPORT

e\



-

The Group’s current ratio, calculated based on current assets of
HK$792,733,000 over current liabilities of HK$251,737,000 (2016:
HK$95,339,000), was at a healthy level of 3.15 times (2016: 2.92
times).

As at 31 December 2017, our trade receivables amounted to
HK$381,714,000, which was an increase of HK$309,008,000
compared to HK$72,706,000 as at 31 December 2016, our
trade payables as at 31 December 2017 also increased to
HK$114,395,000 from HK$43,845,000 as at 31 December 2016.
The significant increase in these balances was mainly due to the
outstanding balances due from our customers/to our suppliers
from the Electric Vehicle Business during the fourth quarter of year
2017. These customers are mainly the travel bus distributors in
the PRC, and eyeing on the bulk future sales orders from these
customers, the Group granted credit terms of 180 days for part of
the outstanding balances. As at the date of this annual report, out
of the HK$96,639,000 trade receivables which were past due as
at 31 December 2017, approximately 97% has been settled. Our
Directors have reviewed the recoverability of the trade receivables
and considered that no impairment was required for the year ended
31 December 2017.

Furthermore, the deposits, prepayments and other receivables of
the Group increased from HK$24,451,000 as at 31 December 2016
to HK$70,517,000 as at 31 December 2017. The balance as at
31 December 2017 included guarantee deposits paid to a customer
amounted to HK$53,022,000, which is expected to be fully recovered
within one year.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the issued share capital of
the Company increased from 2,051,209,327 shares of HK$0.02 each
to 2,1561,209,327 shares as a result of the issuance of 100,000,000
shares by way of placing on 25 May 2017 at the placing price of
HK$2.80 per share (the “Placing”). Details of the Placing are set out
in the section headed “Fund Raising Activity — Placing of New Shares
under General Mandate” below.
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The Group continues to maintain a prudent approach in managing its
financial requirements. In the long run, the Group finances its daily
operations and future acquisitions from internally generated cash
flows and/or external debt and/or by equity fund raisings.

On 1 June 2016, the Company issued convertible bonds with
principal amount of HK$110,000,000 (the “Convertible Bonds”) as the
consideration payable of the sale assets under the sale and purchase
agreement dated 5 November 2015 entered into by NS EE T
B AR AT (Huzhou Xincheng Electric Vehicle Co., Ltd*), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and as the purchase, and
SN B EM AR AR (Huzhou Brighsun Battery Co., Ltd*) and 4/
AKREEAMR AR (Huzhou Brighsun Automobile Co., Ltd*) collectively
as the vendors, and = &£ (Huang Kejun) and Mr. Zhang Genjiang
collectively as the guarantors. The holders of the Convertible Bonds
have the right to convert the outstanding principal amount of the
Convertible Bonds on the expiry of 6 months from the date of issue of
the Convertible Bonds up to the maturity date of 1 June 2018. As at
31 December 2017, the outstanding principal amount of Convertible
Bonds was HK$53,051,974, which can be converted into 486,715,358
shares at the conversion price of HK$0.109, all of which are held by
Huzhou Brighsun Automobile Co., Ltd.

for identification purposes only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND

ANALYSIS

There was no conversion of the Convertible Bonds during the year
ended 31 December 2017. Assuming that there is no change in share
capital of the Company from 31 December 2017 and the Convertible
Bonds are converted in full, the following table illustrates the potential
effects on the shareholding structure of the Company as a result of

the full conversion of the Convertible Bonds:

Name of shareholders

% R & 8

King Full Inc Limited

BEARRATA

Top Bliss Holdings Limited

ERIERBR AR

Huzhou Brighsun Automobile
Co., Ltd*

MINBEXNEEBRAA

Public Shareholders

S

For dilutive impact on earnings per share upon full conversion of

As at 31 December 2017
20174128318
Approximate
percentage of

the existing
issued share

EEE

HZ2017F12 A1 B I F[E I M\ 8 ] 7]
BRRES - BEARFTRAE20176F12 431
HewEmEeHAnnREFETHER T
ﬁﬂ%T%%@%%*%%ﬁﬁ$ &) Ak &

REEENBELE:

TER RS

Shareholdings of the Company
assuming full conversion of
the Convertible Bonds
ZN/NI g
(RBFHRESFETHER)

Approximate
percentage of the
enlarged issued

Number of capital of the Number of  share capital of
shares held Company shares held the Company
A EARRBEER

EETREB BEITRAR

Fi ¥ Bz 43 B B ByEatt A s B 1 8B BMAOBD
781,950,000 36.35% 781,950,000 29.64%
517,709,327 24.07% 517,709,327 19.63%
- 0.00% 486,715,358 18.45%
851,550,000 39.58% 851,550,000 32.28%
2,151,209,327 100.00% 2,637,924,685 100.00%

the Convertible Bonds, please refer to note 12 to the consolidated 5 £

financial statements.

* for identification purposes only
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As the cash and cash equivalents of the Group amounted to
HK$293,853,000 as at 31 December 2017, the Directors consider the
Company has ability to meet the redemption obligations under the
Convertible Bonds.

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement (the “Core Kingdom
Agreement”) entered in relation to the acquisition of Core Kingdom
Limited dated 8 December 2014 (the “Core Kingdom Acquisition”),
Mr. Chow Tsi Tung (“Mr. Chow”), being the vendor in the Core
Kingdom Acquisition, provided an irrecovable and unconditional
guarantee in favour of the Company that the audited net profits of
HIBESEBELEMR AT (Zhejiang Tong Yin Precious Metal
Operation Company Limited*) (“Tong Yin”), an indirect 51%-owned
subsidiary of the Company, for the three years ended 31 December
2015, 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2017 shall be no less
than RMB20 million, RMB24 million and RMB30 million respectively
(the “Guaranteed Net Profit”). A contingent consideration receivable
has been recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position of the Group which was measured at fair value at each of
the end of the reporting period.

The audited net profits of Tong Yin for the years ended 31 December
2015 and 2016 were no less than the Guaranteed Net Profit. However,
for the year ended 31 December 2017, the audited net profit of
Tong Yin was RMB25,586,000 (equivalent to HK$29,512,000), which
was lower than the Guarantee Net Profit of RMB30,000,000. As
a result, pursuant to the Core Kingdom Agreement, the Company
recognised a compensation from profit guarantee of HK$2,596,000
as at 31 December 2017, which is to be paid by Mr. Chow and
was calculated as 51% of the difference between the audited net
profit of Tong Yin and the Guaranteed Net Profit for the year ended
31 December 2017.

For further details of the Core Kingdom Acquisition and the profit
guarantee, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated
9 December 2014, 8 January 2015, 9 February 2015, 27 February
2015 and 29 March 2018.

for identification purposes only
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On 8 November 2017, International Faith Limited, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, served an exercise notice on Mr.
Zhang Genjiang (“Mr. Zhang”), the executive Director and a substantial
shareholder of the Company, to exercise the put option and to require
Mr. Zhang to purchase 1,200 ordinary shares of Brighsun Ev-tech Co.,
Limited, representing 10% of the issued shares, at the consideration
of HK$9,000,000. Further details of this transaction was set out in
the announcement of the Company dated 8 November 2017.

The effective tax rate for the year was 30.9% (2016: 37.9%), which
was higher for the tax rates applicable to the relevant jurisdictions
ranging from 0% to 25%.

The Group’s transactions, trade receivables, trade payables and cash
and cash equivalents are mainly denominated in United States dollars,
Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. Therefore, the Group is exposed
to foreign currency exchange rate risk. The directors of the Company
have a positive attitude to regularly monitor the Group’s exposure
to foreign exchange so as to reduce the foreign exchange rate risk
to a minimum level. To a larger extent, foreign exchange risks were
minimised via balancing the foreign currency monetary assets versus
the corresponding currency liabilities, and foreign currency revenues
versus the corresponding currency expenditures. In light of the above,
it was considered that the Group’s exposure to foreign exchange risks
was not significant and no hedging measure had been undertaken
by the Group.

The Group had no significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2017 (2016: Nil).

As at 31 December 2017, save as disclosed above, no other assets
of the Group were pledged.
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As at 31 December 2017, the Group had material
commitments of HK$716,000 (2016: HK$1,056,000).

capital

The Group did not recommend the payment of any dividend during
the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

There were no significant investment held as at 31 December 2017,
and there were no material acquisitions and disposal of subsidiaries
during the year ended 31 December 2017.

Placing of New Shares under General Mandate

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company issued
100,000,000 shares to not less than six placees at a placing price
of HK$2.80 per share. The placing price was agreed with the
placing agent in a placing agreement dated 21 April 2017, and the
closing price quoted on the Exchange as at that date was HK$3.32
per share. The net placing price was approximately HK$2.78 per
share. The number of the Company’s issued shares increased from
2,051,209,327 as at 1 January 2017 to 2,151,209,327 upon the
completion of the Placing on 25 May 2017. The gross proceeds raised
by the Company from the Placing amounted to HK$280,000,000,
and the net proceeds raised, after the deduction of share issuing
expenses, was approximately HK$277,760,000. The Company
intended to apply HK$20,000,000 for general working capital of the
Group and the remaining balance for the development of the Electric
Vehicle Business. Further details of the Placing have been set out
in the Company’s announcements dated 21 April 2017 and 25 May
2017.

As at 31 December 2017, of the net proceeds of the Placing of
HK$277,760,000, approximately HK$138,000,000 were subsequently
used in the operation of the Electric Vehicle Business, while
approximately HK$9,760,000 were used in general working capital
for our Hong Kong operation. Approximately HK$130,000,000 was
remained unused and placed with licensed banks in Hong Kong and
the PRC.
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The Group had 113 (2016: 197) employees as at 31 December 2017.
Total staff costs for the year, including Directors’ remuneration, was
HK$32,855,000 (2016: HK$31,891,000). The Group’s remuneration
practices are in line with the prevailing market practice and are
determined on the basis of performance, qualification and experience
of individual employee. The Group recognises the importance of
a good relationship with the employees by providing competitive
including salaries,
allowances, insurance, discretionary bonus, share option scheme and
training for human resources upskilling.

remuneration package to the employees

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Group’s businesses, financial conditions, results of operations or
growth prospects may be affected by risks and uncertainties directly
or indirectly pertaining to the Group’s businesses. The risk factors that
could result in the Group’s businesses, financial conditions, results of
operations or growth prospects are identified as below, while there
may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those identified
below which are not known to the Group or which may not be material
now but could turn out to be material in the future.

As the growth of traditional automobile market worldwide is expected
to slow down, more and more automobile manufacturers enter into the
green transportation and electric vehicle industry. Market risk arises
from the intensifying competitions of the Electric Vehicle Business of
the Group.

With an aim to become one of the market leaders in the green
transportation and electric vehicle industry, not only have we engaged
qualified managerial, operational and marketing team to deal with
the Electric Vehicle Business, in order to minimise the market risk,
the Group also builds our competitive edge in the Electric Vehicle
Business by being customer-oriented and provision of tailor-made
solutions to our customers.

The Group is exposed to regulatory risks, especially in the Electric
Vehicle Business, in relation to failure to comply with relevant laws and
regulations in financial, operational and environment aspects. While
there is no non-compliance of laws and regulations during the year,
the Group will remain sensitive to any changes in the regulations, and
respond to any changes to ensure our businesses comply with the
relevant policies.
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Details of the financial risks are set out in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group’s currency exposure mainly arises from its businesses and
assets based in the PRC, further details of which are set out in the
paragraph “Foreign Currency Management” under the section headed
“Financial Review” above.

The worldwide economic and political environment has been
increasingly complex and unstable, especially after the Brexit
announcement and with Donald Trump leading the United States. The
prevailing global uncertainty may materially and adversely affect the
business of our customers or potential customers, or cause a further
slowdown in economic activities in worldwide which, in turn, may
lead to lower demand for our products especially the PRC Silverware
Business and the Sourcing Business.

To address this global uncertainties, the Group pursues prudent and
pragmatic strategies in financial management and capital expenditure
investment. We also strive for efficiency and cost effectiveness in all
aspects of our operations to enhance financial performance.

Subsequent Events After the Reporting Period
On 6 February 2018, the Company signed another supplemental
loan agreement to further extend the repayment date of a loan of
HK$15,000,000 secured by the shares of Powerwell Pacific Limited
to another 3 months to 5 May 2018 from the second extended
repayment date (i.e. 5 February 2018).
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Pursuant to Rule 18.44(2) of the GEM Listing Rules, the Board is
pleased to present this corporate governance report for the year
ended 31 December 2017 (the “Year”). This report highlights the key
corporate governance practices of the Company.

Corporate Governance Practices
The Group is committed to upholding high standards of corporate
governance. The Board considers that enhanced public accountability
and corporate governance are beneficial for the healthy growth of the
Group, improving customer and supplier confidence and safeguarding
the interests of shareholders of the Company.

The Company has complied with the Corporate Governance Code
(the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules
throughout the Year, save as disclosed below:

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code requires the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The division of responsibilities between the
chairman and chief executive should be clearly established and set
out in writing. Mr. Fei Jie (“Mr. Fei”), the Chairman of the Board (the
“Chairman”) and the executive Director, has been assuming the role
of chief executive of the Company during the period from 1 January
2017 to 9 March 2017. The Board believed that the roles of chairman
and chief executive performed by Mr. Fei can provide the Group with
strong and consistent leadership and allow for more effective and
efficient business planning and decisions as well as execution of long
term business strategies.

In view of the long-term development needs of the Company, Mr.
Ng Chin Ming Stephen (“Mr. Ng”) was appointed as Chief Executive
Officer (“CEO”) and executive Director of the Company on 10 March
2017. Mr. Ng as the CEO is responsible for managing and smoothing
the business operations of the Group while Mr. Fei as the Chairman is
responsible for leading the Board in the overall strategic management
and business development of the Group. As a result, code provision
A.2.1 has been complied with commencing from 10 March 2017.

Code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code requires all independent
non-executive directors and non-executive directors should attend
general meetings of listed issuers. Mr. Jim Yiu Ming, an independent
non-executive Director, was unable to attend the annual general
meeting held on 8 May 2017 due to his personal commitment.
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Securities Transactions by Directors and Relevant
Employees

The Company adopted the model code for securities transactions by
the Directors (the “Model Code”) on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules. On specific enquiry made, all the Directors have
confirmed compliance with the Model Code throughout the Year.

Relevant employees who are likely to be in possession of inside
information of the Company are also subject to compliance with
guidelines on no less exacting terms than the Model Code for the
Year.

Board of Directors
The Board is currently composed of six Directors, three being
executive Directors and three being independent non-executive
Directors as set out below.

Mr. Fei Jie, Chairman

Mr. Ng Chin Ming Stephen, Chief Executive Officer
(appointed on 10 March 2017)

Mr. Zhang Genjiang (appointed on 9 May 2017)

Mr. Jim Yiu Ming
Mr. Shen Ruolei
Mr. Sit Sai Hung, Billy

The Board is responsible for the overall management and affairs of
the Company and to maximise returns for shareholders. The day-to-
day operations and management of the Company are delegated to
the executive Directors and senior management of the Company.

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section
“Biographies of Directors” of this annual report.

Chairman and Chief Executive

During the period from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017, Mr.
Fei as the Chairman leads the strategic management and business
development of the Group.
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Mr. Fei has also been assuming the role of chief executive of the
Company during the period from 1 January 2017 to 9 March 2017.

Commencing from 10 March 2017, the Group adopts a dual
leadership structure in which the role of the Chairman is separated
from that of the chief executive. On 10 March 2017, Mr. Ng was
appointed as CEO and executive Director in view of the long-term
development needs. Mr. Ng as the CEO is responsible for managing
and smoothing business operations of the Group while Mr. Fei as the
Chairman is responsible for leading the Board in the overall strategic
management and business development of the Group.

The position of Chairman is currently held by Mr. Fei, and the position
of CEO is currently held by Mr. Ng.

Independent Non-executive Directors

In compliance with the GEM Listing Rules, the Company has
appointed three independent non-executive Directors representing
more than one-third of the Board and at least one of whom has
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

The functions of independent non-executive Directors are primarily
to bring an independent judgement on issues of strategy, policy,
performance, accountability, resources, key appointments and
standards of conducts at board meetings.

Each of independent non-executive Directors has made an annual
confirmation of independence by reference to Rule 5.09 of the GEM
Listing Rules and the Company considers that all Independent Non-
executive Directors were independent during the Year.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors
Except for Mr. Zhang Genjiang, an executive Director, who is
appointed for terms of three years, all the Directors, including
independent non-executive Directors, are appointed for terms of one
year. All the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and eligible
for re-election in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.
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In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, (i) any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until
the first general meeting of the Company after his appointment and be
subject to re-election at such meeting and any Director appointed by
the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only
until the next following annual general meeting of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election; and (i) at each annual general
meeting, not less than one-third of the Directors then in office shall
retire and every Director is subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years.

Relationships and Association among the
Directors

There was no relationships between members of the Board, including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships.

Directors’ Continuous Professional Development
During the Year, the Company provides regular updates on the
business performance of the Group to the Directors, so as to ensure
that they had appropriate understanding of the Group’s businesses
and of their duties and responsibilities under the GEM Listing Rules
and the relevant statutory and regulatory requirements. The Directors
are continually updated on the latest development regarding the GEM
Listing Rules and other applicable statutory requirements to ensure
compliance and upkeep of good corporate governance practices.

Board Diversity Policy

Recognising the benefits of having a diversified Board, the Company
adopts a board diversity policy and aims to achieve diversity in the
Board in order to achieve a sustainable and balanced development for
the businesses of the Group. Selection of candidates for the members
of the Board are made through the consideration of a different
aspects including age, gender, cultural and ethnic background,
professional qualification, skills, knowledge and length of services.
Besides the above aspects, the Nomination Committee will consider
whether the Board composition, as a whole, has sufficient diverse
expertise particularly in corporate management, financial control,
business development and human resources management. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.
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Board Meetings Held and Attendance

The CG Code requires regular meeting of the Board be held at least
four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals. Such Board
meetings involve the active participation, either in person or by
telephone conference. Under code provision A.1.3 of the CG Code,
notice of at least 14 days should be given of a regular board meeting
to all Directors to give all Directors an opportunity to attend. Certain
regular Board meetings were convened with less than 14 days’ notice
to enable the Board members to react timely and make expeditious
decision making in respect of transactions which were of significance
to the Group’s businesses. As a result, the Board meetings were held
with a shorter notice period than required with the consent of all the
Directors for that time being. The Board will do its best endeavours
to meet the requirement of code provision A.1.3 of the CG Code in
future. Adequate and appropriate information is circulated normally
three days in advance of Board meetings to the Directors. In addition
to the regular Board meetings, the Chairman met with independent
non-executive Directors without the presence of other executive
Directors.
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The attendance records of the Directors at Board meetings and Board ZEEZWAFERITHNEEEE@ZNEEELE
Committee meetings held during the Year are set out below: TEZNEFCEHEINNAT:

=

Number of meetings attended/Eligible to attend'

HE AERHENEREE
Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Audit Committee Committee

28 FWEEE ERZEE REZEE

Executive Directors BiTEE
Mr. Fei Jie, Chairman ENEE FE 14/14 N/A7 i N/AT i F N/AZR il
Mr. Fung Chi Kin BEBEAE 6/6 N/A i A N/AT i A N/AT i
(retired on 8 May 2017) (R2017F5 58 B RAT)
Mr. Ng Chin Ming Stephen, ~ REH %4 - 1/11 N/AT 4 A N/AZ 4 A N/AT 8
Chief Executive Officer TRABE
(appointed on 10 March 2017)  (FA201743F100E £ {T)
Mr. Zhang Genjiang ERIAE 5/7 N/A 38 A N/AT 38 A N/AZN i3 A
(appointed on 9 May 2017)  (R2017E5F9BEE )
Independent BUFHRTEE
Non-executive Directors
Mr. Cheung Siu Wah RAOELE 4/6 2/3 11 1/2
(retired on 8 May 2017) (R2017F5R8BE(T)
Mr. Jim Yiu Ming ERBEE 10/14 3/4 4/5 2/3
Mr. Shen Ruolei MESERE 10/14 1/1 4/4 3/3
Mr. Sit Sai Hung, Billy B L g 14/14 4/4 5/5 3/3
1 Number of meetings held during the Year or during the tenure of the Directors/ ! RAEENES/ EFZEERNEREAFENT
Board Committee members for the Year (if such Director was appointed or HANZESN A FEEZASTBETES/
ceased to be a Director/Board Committee member part way during the Year) EEZEERE)BITHNERAHN
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General Meetings Held and Attendance
The attendance records of the Directors at general meetings held
during the Year is set out below:

Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Fei Jie, Chairman BRSEE  TE
Mr. Fung Chi Kin BEBREE

(retired on 8 May 2017) (F2017F5A8H B T)
Mr. Ng Chin Ming Stephen, mERTE -

Chief Executive Officer T AR,

(appointed on 10 March 2017) (F2017F3A10HE £ 1)
Mr. Zhang Genjiang ERIIEAE

(appointed on 9 May 2017) (20175 AR EZE (E)

Independent Non-executive Directors BIIEHITESE

Mr. Cheung Siu Wah R ADE S &
(retired on 8 May 2017) (F2017F5A8HE(T)
Mr. Jim Yiu Ming ERBEE
Mr. Shen Ruolei MEBRE
Mr. Sit Sai Hung, Billy Bt A&

! Number of meetings held during the Year or during the tenure of the Directors
(if such Director was appointed or ceased to be a Director part way during the
Year)
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BRRBEXE BRREIXE
1/1 N/AA i A
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0/1 N/A i A
1/1 N/AA i F
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Remuneration Committee

As at 31 December 2017, the Remuneration Committee comprised
all independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Jim Yiu Ming,
Mr. Sit Sai Hung, Billy and Mr. Shen Ruolei. During the Year on
8 May 2017, Mr. Shen Ruolei was appointed as member of the
Remuneration Committee to fill the vacancy left by Mr. Cheung
Siu Wah, who retired on 8 May 2017. Mr. Sit Sai Hung, Billy is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The primary duties of the
Remuneration Committee are making recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s policy and structure for the Directors and senior
management remuneration, making recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration packages of individual Director and ensuring
that no Director or any of his associates is involved in deciding his
own remuneration. Specific terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are published on the websites of the Company and the
Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee held four meetings during the Year to
review the remuneration package of the Directors.

Audit Committee

As at 31 December 2017, the Audit Committee comprised all
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Jim Yiu Ming, Mr. Sit
Sai Hung, Billy and Mr. Shen Ruolei. During the Year on 8 May 2017,
Mr. Shen Ruolei was appointed as member of the Audit Committee
to fill the vacancy left by Mr. Cheung Siu Wah, who retired on 8 May
2017. Mr. Sit Sai Hung, Billy is the chairman of the Audit Committee,
who has appropriate professional qualifications and experience as
required by the GEM Listing Rules. Specific terms of reference of the
Audit Committee are published on the websites of the Company and
the Exchange. The primary duties of the Audit Committee include the
following:

(@ monitoring and ensuring a proper relationship with the
Company’s auditors;

(b)  reviewing the Group’s quarterly, interim and annual reports and
compliance with accounting standards, the GEM Listing Rules,
and legal requirements before submission to the Board; and

(c) overseeing the Company’s financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control system.
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The Audit Committee held five meetings during the Year, to review the
Group’s quarterly, interim and annual financial statements, to review
the annual audit plan of the external auditors, to meet and discuss
with the external auditors about audit findings, and to discuss with the
Board about re-appointment of the external auditor and the progress
of internal control review performed by an external advisor.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited financial statements of
the Group for the Year and recommended to the Board the approval
and announcement of such financial statements.

Nomination Committee

As at 31 December 2017, the Nomination Committee comprised all
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Jim Yiu Ming, Mr.
Sit Sai Hung, Billy and Mr. Shen Ruolei. Mr. Jim Yiu Ming is the
chairman of the Nomination Committee. On 8 May 2017, Mr. Cheung
Siu Wah retired as a member of the Nomination Committee. The
primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the size,
structure and composition of the Board, identify suitably qualified
individual for appointment to the Board, assess the independence
of independent non-executive Directors and make recommendations
to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of the Directors
and succession planning for the Directors. The Nomination Committee
is also responsible for ensuring the Board comprises diversity of
perspectives appropriate for the Company’s healthy development.
The Nomination Committee considered that the Board has sufficient
diverse expertise, particularly in corporate management, financial
control, business development and human resources management,
for the Company’s businesses, while gender diversity is not directly
relevant to the quality of the Board. Specific terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee are published on the websites of the Company
and the Exchange.

The Nomination Committee held three meetings during the Year
to review the size, structure and composition of the Board, the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors and
the suitability of the Directors proposed for re-appointment at the
Company’s annual general meeting, and make recommendations to
the Board for the Directors newly appointed during the Year.
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Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the following corporate
governance duties as required under the CG Code:

(@)  developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

(b)  reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management of the Group;

(c)  reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d)  developing, reviewing and monitoring the codes of conduct,
where applicable, to employees and the Directors; and

(e) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosures in this report.

During the Year, the Board had reviewed the compliance with the
CG Code and the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group through the Audit Committee.

Company Secretary

Any executive Director will be the person to whom such external
service provider can contact with. The Company appointed Ms.
Hui Wai Man, Shirley (“Ms. Hui”) as the company secretary of
the Company from an external secretarial services provider. In
accordance with Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules, Ms. Hui
confirmed that she has taken no less than 15 hours of the relevant
professional training during the Year.

Auditors’ Remuneration

For the Year, fees for audit and non-audit services paid/payable to
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, the auditors of the Company,
amounted to HK$630,000 and HK$147,000 respectively. The non-
audit services included professional services rendered for interim
review and agreed-upon procedures engagements.
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Risk Management and Internal Contro
The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems.

The Group’s risk management process includes risk identification, risk
evaluation, risk management and risk control and review. The Group’s
risk management framework sets out the risk management process
as described below:

(@ The head of each businesses and functions of the Group,
including areas covering financial, operational, compliance
and risk management functions, is entrusted with duties in
identifying, evaluating and managing risks within its own division
regularly. Mitigation plans are implemented to manage the risks
after taking into account the objectives of each businesses.

(b)  The senior management, including the CEO, is responsible for
overseeing the risk management and internal control activities of
the Group through regular meetings with each division to ensure
principal risks are properly addressed and any material internal
control defects are properly identified and well addressed.

(c) The Board is responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
through regular meetings with the senior management. In
addition, the Audit Committee, taking into consideration of the
advices and opinions from the external professional internal
control consultant, is responsible for ensuring the sufficiency
and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems through regular inspection and monitoring.

The Group has conducted a review of the implemented risk
management and internal control systems. The systems are
implemented to minimise the risk to which the Group is exposed
and is used as a management tool for the day-to-day operation of
business. The system can only provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance against misstatement or losses.
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The Group does not have an internal audit function as the Board
has reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control system of the
Company and is currently of the view that there is no immediate need
to set up an internal audit function within the Group in light of the
size, nature and complexity of the Group’s business. The situation
will be reviewed from time to time.

The Group has engaged ZHONGHUI ANDA Risk Services Limited,
external professional internal control consultant, to conduct
independent internal control review for the Year and the review is
completed as at the date of this annual report.

For the Year, the Board considered the Group’s internal control system
as adequate and effective and that the Company has complied with
the code provisions on internal control of the Code.

Procedures and Internal Controls for the Handling
and Dissemination of Inside Information

The Group complies with requirements of Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO”) and the GEM Listing Rules. The Group discloses
inside information to the public as soon as reasonably practicable
unless the information falls within any of the safe harbours as provided
in the SFO. Before the information is fully disclosed to the public,
the Group ensures the information is kept strictly confidential. If the
Group believes that the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot be
maintained or that confidentiality may have been breached, the Group
would immediately disclose the information to the public. The Group
is committed to ensure that information contained in announcements
or circulars are not false or misleading as to a material fact, or false
or misleading through the omission of a material fact in view of
presenting information in a clear and balanced way, which requires
equal disclosure of both positive and negative facts.

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparation of the
Group’s consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view. As at 31 December 2017, the Directors were not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as going
concern. The responsibility of auditors in respect of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements are set out in the independent
auditors’ report forming part of this annual report.
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Communications with Shareholders and Investor
Relations

The Board has established a shareholders’ communication policy to
maintain an on-going dialogue with its shareholders and investors in
a timely, open and transparent manner. The Board reviews the policy
on a regular basis to ensure effective communication between the
Company, its shareholders and investors.

The Board communicates with its shareholders and investors
through various channels. The Board meets and communicates with
shareholders and investors at annual general meetings and other
general meetings. Corporate communications (such as quarterly,
interim and annual reports, notices, circulars and announcements)
are sent to shareholders in a timely manner and are available on the
websites of the Company and the Exchange.

During the Year, there was no change in the Company’s constitutional
documents.

Shareholders’ Rights

According to Bye-law 85 of the Company’s Bye-laws, a shareholder
of the Company (other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified
to attend and vote at an annual general meeting of the Company
may propose a person for election as a director at such meeting by
lodging a notice in writing signed by such shareholder of his intention
to propose such person for election and a notice in writing signed
by the person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected at the
head office of the Company or the office of the Hong Kong branch
share registrar of the Company provided that the minimum length
of the period, during which such notices are given, shall be at least
seven days and that (if the notices are submitted after the despatch
of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election) the
period for lodgement of such notices shall commence on the day
after the despatch of the notice of the meeting appointed for such
election and end no later than seven days prior to the date of such
meeting.
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Other than election at annual general meeting, pursuant to Bye-law
58 of the Company’s Bye-laws, shareholders holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the company secretary of the Company, to require a special
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition, including election of directors,
and such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionists
themselves may do so in accordance with the provisions of Section
74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

Shareholders can put enquiries to the Board. All enquiries shall be in
writing and sent by post to the headquarter and place of business
of the Company at Units 610-611, Tower Two, Lippo Centre, 89
Queensway, Hong Kong, for the attention of the company secretary
of the Company.
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Executive Directors

FElI Jie, aged 38, was appointed as an executive Director on
2 September 2014 and appointed as the Chairman of the Board
on 22 September 2014. He has over 12 years of experience in
management level positions from deputy manager to chairman of the
board in several companies located in Zhejiang province, the PRC,
two of which are mining related companies.
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NG Chin Ming Stephen, aged 62, joined the Company on
19 October 2016 as Chief Operating Officer and was appointed as an
executive Director and Chief Executive Officer on 10 March 2017. Mr.
Ng has over 36 years of experience in senior management of both
public and private organisations including 22 years in Government
in various departments and policy bureaux as an Administrative
Officer, and 13 years in various capacities such as Chief Executive
Officer of Treasury Markets Association and Global Governor of the
Chinese Gold and Silver Exchange Society. Educated in Wah Yan
College, Kowloon, Mr. Ng holds a Bachelor Degree from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong, and a Master’'s Degree from the University of
Hong Kong. He was also sent by Hong Kong Government for further
studies in Oxford University in the United Kingdom, and Tsinghua
University in Beijing. Mr. Ng also served in Hong Kong Economic
and Trade Office in New York representing Hong Kong in 1988. From
1995 to 1997, he was seconded to Hong Kong Monetary Authority
responsible for the 1997 World Bank/IMF Meetings in Hong Kong
and later in 2000 he was appointed as Associate Director-General
of Invest Hong Kong taking charge of attracting foreign investment
into Hong Kong. In addition, Mr. Ng had worked as a member of
the senior management in The Chinese University of Hong Kong and
Urban Renewal Authority.
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ZHANG Genjiang, aged 52, has been appointed as an executive
Director with effect from 9 May 2017. Currently, Mr. Zhang is serving
as the Chairman of Zhejiang Zhisin Holding Group (#1/T 2 1= & /% &
BB BR A7), the Vice President of China Precious Metals Industry
Committee, the Standing Vice President of Zhejiang Precious Metals
Professional Committee, the Deputy Director of Shanghai Leasing
Industry Association and the Deputy Director of Hangzhou Huzhou
Chamber of Commerce. Mr. Zhang holds a Bachelor Degree from
University of Science and Technology Beijing (Industrial Automation
Department), and studied at Xiamen University. Mr. Zhang worked
in Industrial and Commercial Bank of China after his graduation and
was employed as an economist in 1992. Mr. Zhang served as the
General Manager of Beihai Nandu Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
LB EERZAR AT]) since 1996 and was appointed as the
Chairman of Zhejiang Taiheng Gold Sales Co., Ltd. (/I AE & & #HE
BBRZAT]) from 2006. Mr. Zhang qualified as a Senior Gold Investment
Analyst at the national level in November 2007. In 2010, Mr. Zhang
graduated from the Doctor Degree course of Renmin University of
China. Since 2008, Mr. Zhang has served as the Chairman of the
Board of Zhejiang Zhisin Holding Group.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

JIM Yiu Ming, aged 51, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director, the chairman of the Nomination Committee and
a member of each of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee on 22 September 2014. Mr. Jim is a practicing solicitor in
Hong Kong and is the founding partner of Jim & Co., Solicitors. He
obtained the Degree of Bachelor of Laws at The University of Hong
Kong in 1989 and completed the Postgraduate Certificate in Laws at
The University of Hong Kong in 1991.

SHEN Ruolei, aged 72, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director and a member of the Nomination Committee
on 4 February 2016. He was also appointed as a member of the
Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee on 8 May 2017.
Mr. Shen, a graduate of School of Finance at Central University
of Finance and Economics, and is a senior economist. He has
been a manager, deputy division chief and deputy governor of the
People’s Bank of China (Zhejiang Branch). From April 1984 to June
1992, he was Deputy Governor of Industrial and Commercial Bank
of China (Zhejiang Branch) and President of Hangzhou Financial
Management Cadres College of Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China. From June 1992 to June 1997, he was Governor of Industrial
and Commercial Bank of China (Shanghai Municipal Branch) cum
Chairman of Shanghai Shenyin Securities Co., Ltd., Chairman of
International Bank of Paris and Shanghai, Chairman of the Second
Session of Shanghai Banking Association, Vice President of Shanghai
Finance Association, and President of Shanghai Urban Financial
Society. From June 1997 to April 2013, he was Vice-Chairman of
Shanghai International Trust & Investment Co., Ltd., Chairman of
China United MetLife Insurance Co., Ltd., General Manager cum
Chairman of Shanghai United International Investment Ltd. (&8 B E
B ¥ & A 7)), Director of Shanghai Commercial Bank, and Director
of Bank of Shanghai. From June 2013 to present, Mr. Shen is
Chairman cum President of Shanghai Zhan Zheng Equity Investment
Fund Management Co., Ltd. (E/SREREREESEEFRA
A]), Independent Non-executive Director of Huajun Holdings Limited
(listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 377),
Consultant of the Government of Zhoushan New Area in Zhejiang.
In addition, Mr. Shen is a part-time professor at various universities
including Jiaotong University, Central University of Finance and
Economics, and Shanghai University of Finance and Economics. He
is Consultant and Vice-President of Alumni Association of Central
University of Finance and Economics. He has been a member of the
8th and 9th Session of Shanghai Political Consultative Conference.
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SIT Sai Hung, Billy, aged 61, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director, the chairman of each of the Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee and a member of the Nomination
Committee on 22 September 2014. He obtained the Degree of
Bachelor of Social Science at The Chinese University of Hong Kong in
1981, the Diploma in Surveying at The College of Estate Management
in 1996 and the Degree of Master of Law at The University of Beijing
in 2002. Mr. Sit also completed the Merchant Bank Program at the
School of Business Administration of The University of Washington in
1994. Mr. Sit has been working in the banking and financial related
sector for more than 30 years.

Mr. Sit is currently an executive Director of Jun Yang Financial

Holdings Limited (listed on the Main Board of the Exchange, Stock
Code: 397).
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The Directors present their annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

Change of Company Name

As approved by the shareholders at the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 8 May 2017, the name of the Company was
changed from “Powerwell Pacific Holdings Limited” to “China Trustful
Group Limited” and “#F B 2% E BB A F]” has been adopted as
the new secondary name to replace “Z= &K FEEHR AT with
effect from 17 May 2017. The Certificate of Registration of Alteration
of Name of Registered Non-Hong Kong Company was issued by the
Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong on 20 June 2017 confirming
the registration of the new name of the Company “China Trustful
Group Limited Bl Z 5B AR AF)” in Hong Kong under Part 16
of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
(the “Hong Kong Companies Ordinance”).

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 36
to the consolidated financial statements.

Results

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on pages
64 to 65 to this annual report.

Dividend

No special dividend was paid during the Year (2016: nil). The Directors
do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the Year (2016:
nil).

Business Review

Further discussion and analysis of the activities of the Group as
required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance can
be found in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 4
to 9 to this annual report and “Management Discussion and Analysis”
on pages 10 to 23 to this annual report. These sections form part of
this Directors’ report.
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Environmental Policies and Performance

With an aim to become a strong market player in the green
transportation and electric vehicle industry, the Group leads by
example by placing strong emphasis on the environmental impact
caused by the Company’s operation and have established appropriate
environmental management systems tailored to the nature of our
businesses. The Group adheres to a green production process,
including handling three wastes from factories and strictly complying
with national and local environmental laws and regulations. As for our
daily office operations, the Group also encourages controlling energy
consumption in terms of employees’ daily behaviors and equipment
management.

Further discussions on the Group’s environmental policies and our
relationship with various stakeholders are covered by a separate
Environmental, Social and Governance report which will be available
at the websites of the Company and the Exchange in or before June
2018.

Compliance with Relevant Laws and Regulations
During the Year, as far as the Company is aware, there was no
material breach of or non-compliance with applicable laws and
regulations by the Group that has a significant impact on the
businesses and operations of the Group, such as the national and
local environmental laws and regulations, such as the 1 ZEA R 2L FNE
IREBRFE L (iterally translated as the Environmental Protection Law of
the People’s Republic of China) and the regulations of environmental
protection of the Zhejiang Province.

Key Relationships with Employees, Customers
and Suppliers

Being people-oriented, the Group ensures all staff are reasonably
remunerated and also continues to improve, regularly review and
update its policies on remuneration, benefits, occupational health and
safety. The Group maintains a good relationship with its customers
and suppliers. The Group carries out effective communication with
customers, with an aim to provide better services for the customers.
The Group cooperates with its suppliers to achieve the synergetic
effects.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
Year are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.
Shares were issued during the Year as a result of the placing of new
shares completed on 25 May 2017.

Convertible Bonds
Details of the convertible bonds are set out in note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Reserves

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the Year are set out in consolidated statement of changes in
equity on pages 68 to 69 to this annual report and note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

Distributable Reserves of the Company

The distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2017
amounted to HK$379,595,000 (2016: HK$119,588,000). In addition,
the Company’s share premium account may be distributed in the form
of fully paid bonus shares.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The approximate percentages in respect of the Group’s sales
and purchases attributable to the major customers and suppliers
respectively during the Year are as follows:

The largest customer SN S

Five largest customers in aggregate AREFAF
The largest supplier &AM ER
Five largest suppliers in aggregate AR EEEE

At no time during the Year have the Directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest
in these major customers and suppliers.
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Directors
The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual report

are as follows:

Mr. Fei Jie, Chairman

Mr. Fung Chi Kin (retired on 8 May 2017)

Mr. Ng Chin Ming Stephen, Chief Executive Officer
(appointed on 10 March 2017)

Mr. Zhang Genjiang
(appointed on 9 May 2017)

Mr. Cheung Siu Wah (retired on 8 May 2017)
Mr. Jim Yiu Ming

Mr. Shen Ruolei

Mr. Sit Sai Hung, Billy

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Jim Yiu Ming, Mr.
Sit Sai Hung, Billy and Mr. Zhang Genjiang shall retire and being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting to be held on 8 May 2018.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 38 to 42
under the section headed “Biographies of Directors” of this annual
report.

Disclosure of Changes in Information of Directors
Pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of the GEM Listing Rules, changes in
Directors’ information since the date of the interim report for the six
months ended 30 June 2017 are set out below:

- Mr. Sit Sai Hung Billy was appointed as an executive director of
Jun Yang Financial Holdings Limited (listed on the Main Board
of the Exchange, Stock Code: 397) with effect from 31 August
2017.
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Remuneration Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by
reference to the recommendations of the Remuneration Committee
on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided by
reference to the recommendations of the Remuneration Committee,
regard to the Company’s operating
performance and comparable market statistics.

having results, individual

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
the Directors and eligible employees. Details of the scheme are set
out in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” of this report.

Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management
The Board considers the Directors and the Chief Executive Officer to
be the senior management of the Company.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors are set out in note 13 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Save as disclosed in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements,
no other contracts of significance to which the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at
any time during the Year.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Businesses

As at 31 December 2017, none of the Directors, the controlling
shareholders of the Company and their respective associates (as
defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had any interest in a business which
causes or may cause a significant competition with the business of
the Group and any other conflicts of interest which any such person
has or may have with the Group.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

All of the executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors
have entered into service contracts or letters of appointment with
the Company respectively. The term of appointment of Mr. Fei Jie,
Mr. Ng Chin Ming Stephen, Mr. Jim Yiu Ming, Mr. Shen Ruolei and
Mr. Sit Sai Hung, Billy are 1 year from 2 September 2014, 10 March
2017, 22 September 2014, 4 February 2016 and 22 September 2014
respectively; the term of appointment of Mr. Zhang Genjiang is 3
years from 9 May 2017. The term of appointment of each Director
is renewable by mutual agreement of both parties unless terminated
by not less than three months’ prior written notice in writing to the
other party. All the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the Company’s annual general meeting at least once
every three years in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.

None of the Directors, including the Directors proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting, has a service contract
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Permitted Indemnity Provision and Directors’ and
Officers’ Liability Insurance

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in Section 469 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong)) for the benefit of the Directors is currently in force and was
in force throughout the Year.

Pursuant to Article 164(1) of the Bye-laws of the Company, the
Directors or other officers of the Company shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which may incur in connection with the executive of their
duty provided that the indemnity shall not extend to any matter in
respect of fraud or dishonesty of the above persons. The Company
has arranged Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance policy of the
Company during the Year.

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
entire or primary business of the Company has been entered into or
existed during the Year.
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Controlling Shareholders’ Interests in Contracts
of Significance

To the best knowledge of the Directors, no contract of significance
had been entered into between the Company or any of its subsidiaries
and the controlling shareholder of the Company or any of its

subsidiaries during the Year.

Directors’” and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company or any Associated
Corporation

As at 31 December 2017, the interests of the Directors in the share
capital of the Company which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) (the “SFO”) (including interests which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or were required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein, or were required, pursuant to Rules 5.48 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the
Exchange were as follows:

@)

Interest in the shares of the Company

Capacity/
Director Nature of interest
EE B4 EnE
Mr. Fei Jie Corporate interest (Note 1)
BARNEE NRER (M at1)

Mr. Zhang Genjiang
BERILEAE

Corporate interest (Note 2)
NEEE (Ht2)

Note 1: These shares are held by associated corporations King Full Inc Limited

and Sure Gold Ventures Limited.

Note 2: These shares are held by an associated corporation Top Bliss Holdings
Limited.
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(b)  Interest in the shares of associated corporations

Director

Es

Mr. Fei Jie

*

ERNEE

Mr. Zhang
Genjiang

BERIIEE

Note 1:

Name of

associated corporation

HEEE RS

King Full Inc Limited

REARIQA

Sure Gold Ventures Limited

EEARARAT

Top Bliss Holdings Limited

ERERBRA

z«< P

MIRRESBEE

(Zhejiang Tong Yin PreC|ous
Metal Operation Company
Limited®) (“Zhejiang Tong

Yin®)
TR ESBIEE
(T TR )

BRA

BRAA

®)

Capacity/
Nature of
interest
g
Eang

Corporate interest &
beneficial owner
(Note 1)

NGIE: X5
BN T

B Al
=
85 m

Beneficial owner
(Note 1)

Exn#EAA
(K1)

Beneficial owner

E@BEAA

Corporate interest
(Note 2)

NEE (Y AE2)

King Full Inc Limited is 90% (45,000,000 shares) directly owned by Sure

Gold Ventures Limited and is 10% (5,000,000 shares) directly owned
by Mr. Fei Jie. Sure Gold Ventures Limited is in turn wholly-owned by

Mr. Fei Jie.

Note 2:

Zhejiang Tong Yin is 49% owned by T ZEEKREBMBR QG

(Zhejiang Zhisin Holding Group Limited*), which is in turn 60% owned
¢} 9

by Mr. Zhang Genjiang. Zhejiang Tong Yin is a subsidiary of the

Company and is thus an associated corporation of the Company.

* for identification purposes only
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the
Directors or any chief executive of the Company had an interest or
short position in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified to the Company and
the Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which he was taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which was required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein, or pursuant to the Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and the Exchange.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares
As at 31 December 2017, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
shows that, other than the interests disclosed above in respect of
certain Directors, the following shareholders had notified the Company
of relevant interests in the issued share capital of the Company.
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Ordinary shares and underlying shares of the Company

Capacity/Nature of

Name of shareholders interest

Bk R & 18 S #Enkg

King Full Inc Limited Beneficial owner (Note 1)
BEEERAA BHBEBEAM L

Sure Gold Ventures Limited Corporate Interest (Note 1)
E & BRARAT NEVEm (M)

Mr. Fei Jie Corporate interest (Note 2)
BREE NAER (M t2)

Ms. Wu Wen Interest in spouse (Note 2)
REXL RECB & (M it2)
Top Bliss Holdings Limited Beneficial owner (Note 3)
ERIERARAR BHBEB A3

Mr. Zhang Genjiang Corporate interest (Note 3)
ERIEAE NEE (M aE3)

MM BEKEEFRAF (Huzhou Beneficial owner (Note 4)

Brighsun Automobile Co., Ltd.*)

(“Huzhou Brighsun”)
MMBEBREEBERAADAMNER]D BEm#EAAMN T4

* for identification purposes only
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Notes:

King Full Inc Limited is 10% directly held by Mr. Fei Jie and the remaining 90%
directly held by Sure Gold Ventures Limited. Sure Gold Ventures Limited is in turn
wholly-owned by Mr. Fei Jie. Accordingly, Sure Gold Ventures Limited and Mr.
Fei Jie are deemed to be interested in the 781,950,000 shares of the Company
held by King Full Inc Limited by virtue of the SFO.

The shares are held by King Full Inc Limited, the entire issued share capital of
which is indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. Fei Jie, the spouse of Ms. Wu Wen.
Accordingly, Ms. Wu Wen is deemed to be interested in the entire 781,950,000
shares by virtue of the SFO.

The entire issued share capital of Top Bliss Holdings Limited is wholly and
beneficially owned by Mr. Zhang Genjiang. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Zhang
Genjiang is deemed to be interested in the entire 517,709,327 shares held by
Top Bliss Holdings Limited.

486,715,358 shares represent the number of shares that could be converted
after full exercise of the outstanding convertible rights on the convertible bonds
issued by the Company to Huzhou Brighsun pursuant to the sales and purchase
agreement dated 5 November 2015. Huzhou Brighsun is directly wholly-owned
by LB FTEEIRBR AR (Zhejiang Brighsun New Energy Co., Ltd.*), which is
in turn 40% owned directly by TT/N &R K iEREE SE R B R AR (Hangzhou
Hong Tai Equity Investment Fund Management Co., Ltd.").

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, no other persons
had any interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, or otherwise notified to
the Company.

Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme which has become
effective on 22 December 2010 (the “Scheme”) for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.

* for identification purposes only

By it

1, BEERATRSHNAEBALTERECEBBERA
RIEEEA10%K90%  MESBIRERARHE
REE2ERE - At - REEFRHEKN -
ECEBRBBRAARBERALERR AR EER
AR /AN A 71781,950,000 % A% 17 1% A 1

e
m °

2. ZEROBEBELEERAGEE  MBEFRAR
MEHERTRAEREALE(RELLTHER)
A Bl BEELFRMAEE  RELLH
BB 2 E0781,950,0000% A% 19 AR #E A %= o

3. ERERERARNNZHEHTRAHERIT L
E2ERERRE BEZHFRBEHKL =R
IARABERARNEEERERARZANE S
517,709,327 IR AR 5 R A i ©

4. 486,715,358 0% % 1 15 AN R A1 4R #% B HA /220154 11
ASEMEBEBEREMBMNERBITOHIRBRESZ
M ARAT IR AR R BT A T S IR M AR (D B
B MMERTBENIEXTERERARERE
2EWA  MATARITEERAR A A BTN
BRBREREESERERAGHEEE AL °

Br EXFr EEE SN - R2017F12 3318 - #
| E fth A TR R B AR (0 2 A8 B IR () A
BIREFEH N B E KD £3361& A 8 A
NAGFEMELMKESITMERARME
A A R ©

e R BT 2l
RARER Y —IEERER E(ER201056F128
22RAERBOEED)  MAREBEBKINE
LEBHNAER2HEERHBBLER -

ANNUAL REPORT



On 27 May 2015 (the “Date of Grant”), the Company granted share
options (the “Share Options”) to the eligible persons within the Group
the “Grantees”) pursuant to the Company’s share option scheme
launched on 22 December 2010, subject to acceptance by the
Grantees. The Share Options entitle the Grantees to subscribe for a
total of 15,000,000 ordinary shares with nominal value of HK$0.10
each in the capital of the Company upon the exercise of the Share
Options in full. The exercise price of the Share Options granted of
HK$1.17 per share represent the highest of (i) the closing price of
HK$1.17 per share on the Date of Grant; (i) the average closing
price of HK$1.04 per share for the five business days immediately
preceding the Date of Grant; and (iii) the nominal value of HK$0.10
per share. Details of the grant of Share Options was set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 27 May 2015. During the year
ended 31 December 2015, 7,500,000 options had been exercised.
Upon the share subdivision of every existing issued and unissued
shares of par value of HK$0.10 each in the share capital of the
Company subdivided into five shares of par value of HK$0.02 each
in the share capital of the Company effective on 4 May 2016, the
exercise price and the number of outstanding options were adjusted
to HK$0.234 and 37,500,000 options respectively in accordance
with the terms and conditions of the Share Option Scheme. No
performance targets need to be achieved by the Grantees before the
Share Options can be exercised. As at 31 December 2017, no option
was lapsed and there were 37,500,000 options outstanding under the
Share Option Scheme.

Details of the Share Option Scheme and the movements in Share
Options granted are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Directors’
Debentures
Save as the Share Option Scheme disclosed above, at no time
during the Year was the Company, its holding company, or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

Rights to Purchase Shares or
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed
Securities of the Company

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

Connected and Related Party Transactions
During the Year, save for the connected transaction described under
the sub-section headed “Financial Review — Connected Transaction
— Exercise of Put Option in relation to Interest in Brighsun Ev-tech
Co., Limited” in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” of this annual report, the Group has not entered into any
significant connected transaction or continuing connected transaction
which should be disclosed pursuant to the requirement under the
GEM Listing Rules.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Sufficiency of Public Float

As at the date of this report, based on information publicly available
to the Company and to the knowledge of the Directors, the Company
has maintained a sufficient public float.

Closure of register of members

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 3 May 2018 to Tuesday, 8 May 2018, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of Shares will be registered. In order
to be eligible to attend and vote at the annual general meeting of
the Company to be held on 8 May 2018, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged for
registration with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer
office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 2 May 2018.

Corporate Governance

A report on corporate governance of the Company is set out on
pages 24 to 37 under the section headed “Corporate Governance
Report” of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Auditors
The consolidated financial statements for the Year have been audited
by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited shall retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited as auditors of

the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Fei Jie
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2018

China Trustful Group Limited FEl Z &£ B AR A T

EEEHSE

% B EM
AFEENEANHRES HEE & E
FERATEMN -

EEEtmEBMERIRMGEE  ERS
BERUBESEE  -RNEERRBFAS
FHBRE-TBRER  NEBBEE SIS
BHRER AR EEARR ZZEEAD -

EAEESm
TE
F-$2

F& 201853 H29H



B st @ FH AR
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HLB

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF CHINA TRUSTFUL GROUP LIMITED

(FORMERLY KNOWN AS POWERWELL PACIFIC HOLDINGS
LIMITED)

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Trustful Group Limited (formerly known as Powerwell Pacific Holdings
Limited) (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) set out on pages 64 to 170, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matters

AEEE

Impairment of trade receivables

E 5 2 E

Refer to note 19 to the consolidated financial statements

FLHGE A BEHEN 19

The Group has trade receivables with the amounts of
approximately HK$381,714,000. Management judgement is
required in assessing and determining the recoverability of
trade receivables and adequacy of allowance made.
RNEBE 5 EWRIE R #381,714,0008 7T - EEERETE
BRI HRIENAIKBM LA RBERERERAZESE
1B RE B HI B -

In determining whether there is objective evidence of
impairment loss, the Group takes into consideration the
credit history of the customers and the current market
condition which may require management judgement.

RETREFEREEBEENEHERS X BS5EEHK
EPHNEERLREAMR Al mEEEEED HE -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMETERRNTEEMREENSER

Our audit procedures in relation to the management’s
impairment assessment of trade receivables including:
BB MAEIRE N E 5 EUWGRIA PR R RE G
Bt EFEE:

- Discussing the Group’s procedures on credit
period given to customers with the management;

RERENH REEAEFRHEEHRY
R

- Evaluating the management’'s impairment
assessment of trade receivables; and
FHEEIEE Y E SR WA RO BERT & &

- Checking, on a sample basis, the accuracy
and relevance of information included in the
impairment assessment of trade receivables.
BEM iR T Y E 5K IAR E R E AR S
BReEwrt KA -

We consider the management conclusion to be
consistent with the available information.

BHRREEENEREARFEN — -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditors’ report thereon (the “Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of the Other Information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or acceptability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise

professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:
° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the

consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Yu Chi Fat.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Yu Chi Fat
Practicing Certificate Number: P05467

Hong Kong, 29 March 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR GehEakEMZEZ@E
LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME U 2§

For the year ended 31 December 2017

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAE T
Revenue PN 5 588,544 303,268
Cost of sales & B AR (386,852) (203,597)
Gross profit ERH 201,692 99,671
Other revenue and other income EH AU A B H b U 25 6 4,252 2,550
Selling and distribution costs HERDHEKAR (2,646) (3,034)
Administrative expenses TERAXZ (61,556) (53,867)
Loss arising in fair value change of FEW S ARERTE
contingent consideration receivable BERmMEEBAE 18 (4,511) (1,275)
Other operating expenses HEib &R - ()
Finance costs Bl & B 8 (4,563) (4,957)
Profit before income tax B& FR 13 #i Bi itk # 9 132,668 39,080
Income tax expense FriS Fi 5 X 10 (40,986) (14,819)
Profit for the year 5 itk F 91,682 24,261

Other comprehensive income/(loss) Hth2E¥zE (EiE)

Items that may be reclassified HAEnEF D EE Bz
subsequently to profit or loss: ZIEA
Exchange differences arising on FAMEBINERS
translation of foreign operations EAZENEZRE
during the year 25,242 (14,533)

Other comprehensive income/(loss) ERMEMMEZEWZE
for the year (B518) 25,242 (14,533)

Total comprehensive income for the N2 EW KB EE
year 116,924 9,728

64 China Trustful Group Limited F Bz &£ B ER A 7



2017 2016
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
e iE F#ET TR

Profit for the year attributable to: FMNEGEF :

Owners of the Company RAREAA 77,222 10,328
Non-controlling interests FEVE IR 5 14,460 13,933
91,682 24,261

Total comprehensive income/(loss) E£REEZEMZE

for the year attributable to: (B518) 48 %8 :
Owners of the Company RARHEAEA 99,477 2,312)
Non-controlling interests FE 170 A% 4 25 17,447 12,040
116,924 9,728
Earnings per share BREF
Basic X 12 HK3.66 centsi#fll  HK0.67 centsifll
Diluted % 12 HK3.05 cents %l HK0.65 centsis

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated  F& M B 5 7 fK 5% 5 43 & B 75 3R 3= 19 48 A 2B

AN

financial statements. 7 °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31 December 2017

Notes

iog

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Interest in leasehold land
Prepayment for property, plant and
equipment
Available-for-sale financial assets

Current assets
Inventories
Contingent consideration receivable
Available-for-sale financial assets
Trade receivables
Deposits, prepayments and other

receivables

Amount due from a related company
Amount due from a director
Tax recoverable
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Secured loan
Convertible bonds
Amount due to a shareholder

Amounts due to non-controlling interests

Amounts due to related companies
Tax payables

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

ERBEE
ME - BFENREE
HE+ i

ME - BERZREZ

B FRIR
AL ESREE

REBEE
A
e HARME
AftHEEREE
B 5 R R IA
we  BEFREAR
H A & WK IR

FEl— R BE R RIFRIR

el — 2 EE A
AJ Y @ 75 1R
RehBReFEY

mEBEHE

B 5 R E AR KR

BHEMER
AR A 75
e — & IR FRA
J& 1 IF 22 P # 25 73X
FE 5 B 3 R R R IA
JEAS 3R

REBEEFR

HWEERRBAER
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A

14
15

16

17
18
16
19

20
21

22

23
24
25
21
21
21

e MBI R

R2017F12H31H

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
F # T FAET
88,931 94,942
20,964 19,943
2,865 625

- 9,000
112,760 124,510
33,738 46,175
- 7,107

3,122 -
381,714 72,706
70,517 24,451
- 126

9,018 -
771 -
293,853 127,722
792,733 278,287
128,955 53,992
15,000 15,000
51,444 =
5,438 5,438
118 105
7,242 9,592
43,540 11,212
251,737 95,339
540,996 182,948
653,756 307,458




2017 2016

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
iokza F & T Fi&or
Non-current liabilities EREBER
Convertible bonds Al E S 25 - 47,781
Deferred tax liability FEERIBEE 26 1,074 1,679
1,074 49,460
Net assets BEFH 652,682 257,998
Capital and reserves BAXRGHHE
Share capital fi&% < 27 43,024 41,024
Reserves ER 560,525 185,288
Equity attributable to owners of EATHEANEGER
the Company 603,549 226,312
Non-controlling interests FEIE R E 49,133 31,686
Total equity IS EE 652,682 257,098

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised % & 4r & MG HMERN2018EIA0REESE
for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2018 and signed on  #t /&R EEF|Z - WH T EERKEE:
its behalf by:

Fei Jie Ng Chin Ming Stephen
BA R R B

Director Director
BEFE EBEFE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated [ I B 57 # ik 52 5 45 & B 7% 3R 3% &9 48 Ak 6

AN

financial statements. @ ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 B 22017F12H31H 1 F/E

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

FATHFAEGEES
Share- (Accumulated
based Capital Convertible losses)/ Non-
Share Share Capital Merger payment Translation contribution bonds retained controlling  Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings  Total interests equity
kA
-3 TRE (RiFER)/ [ $:1

B4 ROEE AXHE AHEE HRERE REEE  TERRE  BEHHEE RERY 48 FPREZ 48
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 — HK$000 HK$000 HK8'000 HK$000 HKS000  HK$000 HKS000
FEr FEr TEr TET  TEx TET TET TET FET TET FET FET
(Note &) (Note b) (Note ¢)  (Note a) (Note ¢/ (Note 1) (Note g)
(Hi#a) (Wito) (WiEc) (Wit  (He) (Hrét) (Hiitg)

At 1 January 2016 201641 A1H 30,670 110,086 155 1,083 2,565 (1,342) - - (612) 142,555 19,646 162,201
Profit for the year FREF - - - - - - - 10,328 10,328 13,933 24,261
Other comprehensive income: ~ Eftr 2 i :

Exchange differences arising R €85

on translation of foreign EBEEL
operations during the year ERES = = = = = (12,640) = = - (12,640 (1,893) (14,533)
Total comprehensive (oss)/income A2 E (E18),/

for the year W - - = = - (12640 = - 1038 (2319 12040 9728
Recognition of equity component T 7 7] # {55 &

of convertble bonds Emih = = = = = = = 25,276 - 25216 - 25216
Capital contribution TE = = = = = = 12,144 = - 12144 - 12144
Deferred tax on convertible bonds ] # i & 5 K i€

(hote 26) WBE W #26) = = = = = = = 4,170) - @41 - {4170)
Conversion of convertible bonds B A% R EH 10,354 53,900 = = = = = (13,086) - 51168 - 51,168
Release of deferred tax upon ~ REHRARRESRE

conversion of BRBENE

convertible bonds (note 26) (Hii226) = = = = = = = 1,822 - 182 - 182
Share issuing expenses RIHETRZ = (171) = = = = = = = (171) - (n)
At 31 December 2016 and at ~ FA20165F12A318 &

1 January 2017 2017%1R1A 41,024 163,815 155 1,083 2,565 (13,982 12,144 9,842 9,716 226,312 31,686 257,998
Profit for the year ERERN - - = = = = = = 77220 77222 14,460 91,682
Other comprehensive income: ~ Efth 2 E 3% :

Exchange differences arising ~ E R E /55

on translation of foreign EBEEL
operations during the year EREE - = = = = 22,255 = = - 22,255 2987 25242
Total comprehensive income for % A% E M # @5

the year - - - - - 22,255 - - 77222 99477 17447 116,924
Placement of new shares REMR 2,000 278,000 = = = = = = - 280,000 - 280,000
Share issuing expenses RHETRZ - (220 = = = = = = - (2240 - (2,240)
At 31 December 2017 R2017E12A318 43,024 439,575 155 1,033 2,565 8,273 12,144 9,842 86,938 603,549 49,133 652,682

China Trustful Group Limited F Bz &£ B ER A 7



Notes:

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the share premium
of the Company can be used in paying up unissued shares of the Company to
be issued to members of the Company as fully paid bonus shares.

Capital reserve arose from acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries from
non-controlling interests. It represents the difference between the consideration
paid and the net assets of the relevant companies shared by non-controlling
interests.

To rationalise the structure of the Group in preparation for the listing of the
Company’s shares, the Group undergone a group restructuring which became
effective on 20 December 2010 (the “Reorganisation”). The financial information
of the Group has been prepared as if the group structure intended under the
Reorganisation had always been exist. In connection to the Reorganisation,
merger reserve arose mainly in respect of the followings:

(i) On 16 June 2010 and 20 June 2010 respectively, the Group’s subsidiary,
Powerwell Pacific Limited (“Powerwell Pacific”), issued 752 new shares
of United States Dollar (“USD”) 1 each to the founding shareholders
of the Group at the consideration of USD1 each and issued 44 new
shares of USD1 each, representing 5.5% of the enlarged share capital of
Powerwell Pacific, to a party who was then a non-controlling shareholder
of Powerwell Pacific at a consideration of HK$1,027,000. These have
resulted in an increase in equity of the Group by HK$1,033,000 which
was included in merger reserve; and

(i) The difference between the nominal value of the aggregate share
capital of subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Reorganisation over the
nominal value of the shares of the Company issued in exchange for the
subsidiaries.

Share-based payment reserve represents the fair value of services estimated
to be received in exchange for the grant of the relevant share options over the
relevant vesting periods, the total of which is based on the fair value of the share
options at grant date. The amount for each period is determined by spreading
the fair value of the share options over the relevant vesting period (if any) and is
recognised as staff costs and related expenses with a corresponding increase
in the share-based payment reserve.

Translation reserve represents exchange differences relating to the translation
of the net assets of the Group’s foreign operations from their functional
currencies to the Group’s presentation currency (i.e. Hong Kong dollar (‘HKS$”))
are recognised directly in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
translation reserve. Such exchange differences accumulated in the exchange
reserve are reclassified to (accumulated losses)/retained earnings on the disposal
of the foreign operations.

Capital contribution reserve represents the contribution of inventories from
shareholder to the Group.

Under Hong Kong Accounting Standard 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation,
convertible bonds issued are split into their liability and equity components at
initial recognition by recognising the liability component at its fair value which
is determined using a market interest rate for similar non-convertible debts
and attributing to the equity component the difference between the fair value
of the goods received and the fair value of the liability component. The liability
component is subsequently carried at amortised cost. The equity component
is recognised in the convertible bonds reserve until the convertible bonds are
either converted (in which case it is transferred to share premium) or redeemed
(in which case it is released directly to (accumulated losses)/retained earnings).
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 B 22017F12H31H 1 F/E

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$000
F 7T FET
Cash flows from operating activities HEFTHWIRER
Profit before income tax B P 15 50 A% A1 132,668 39,080
Adjustments for: BRI FEELFAE:
Finance costs B & A 4,563 4,957
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BEREZEBITE 13,816 9,039
Amortisation of interest in leasehold land T & -t e o 5 467 272
Impairment loss recognised in respect of trade i & 5 & I 3018 i #E 52
receivables BB 1B - 8
Loss arising in fair value change of contingent FERHAREBRAFEES
consideration receivable MmES &8 4,511 1,275
Interest income A B U A (1,134) (264)
Written-off of property, plant and equipment Y% - R 5B KRR 1 i 8E 1,295 112
Write-down of obsolete inventories PR E 17 & #MUR 275 170

Operating cash flows before movements in working &3E & & Z BRI ZH &R

capital 156,461 54,649
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERD,/ (M) 14,263 (20,121)
Increase in trade receivables, deposits, BB RIE - e - BRK

prepayments and other receivables TE K H b & U FRIE SN (322,075) (64,545)
Decrease/(increase) in amount due ﬁ’gﬂﬁl—%ﬁ E B NI

from a related company B, (38 0) 126 (134)
Increase in amount due from a director FEJ%Z HE F IR N (18) =
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 N Fo A FE A 5 IE 38 0 65,955 23,695
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to non- JE {<F IF 8 AR 2 SR TEIE 0

controlling interests OB ) 4 (113)
(Decrease)/increase in amounts due to related e REARRIEBCRD),

companies H#n (2,896) 10,213
Cash (used in)/generated from operations EE(TR),/ EENRE (88,180) 3,644
Tax paid SRR (10,034) (12,747)
Net cash used in operating activities HEFTHMANREEHE (98,214) (9,103)
Cash flows from investing activities BREGTHHRLRE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEYWE BELZHE (2,581) (4,322)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and ﬁ’%%% B K EZAETS

equipment K8 3 9
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets ﬁ%ﬁTf HESREE (3,358) -
Interest received 2 U F & 1,134 264
Net cash used in investing activities BRETHFMANEEFE (4,802) (4,049)
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Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from placement of new shares
Interest paid
Share issuing expenses

Net cash generated from/(used in) financing
activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning
of the reporting period

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the
reporting period

METHNRER

AL & X AT 1S 300R
EAE
B BATH X

METHELE (FTAY
B&FH

ReRRLEMY MM
(D) B 88

BERNNRLBRS
% EY

R B2

RERRHREREAS
EEY

2017
HK$°000

FET

280,000
(900)
(2,240)

276,860

173,844

127,722
(7,713)

293,853
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2016
HK$'000
THET

(900)
(171)

(1,071)

(14,223)

145,700
(3,755)

127,722



for the year ended 31 December 2017

China Trustful Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in Bermuda on 14 June 2010 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda. King
Full Inc Limited and Top Bliss Holdings Limited are controlling
and substantial shareholders of the Company respectively. The
Company’s registered office is located at Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton, HM 11, Bermuda. The Company’s
principal place of business is located at Units 610—611, Tower
Two, Lippo Centre, 89 Queensway, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares were listed on the GEM (“GEM”) of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
on 26 January 2011.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in HKS,
which is also the functional currency of the Company and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand (HK$’000) except
otherwise indicated.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Group are the provision of
sourcing and procurement solutions to customers for production
of watches, costume jewelries, and display and packaging
products (the “Sourcing Business”), the retail and wholesale of
luxury brand silverware, silver utensils and luxury goods in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) (the “PRC Silverware
Business”) and the research and development, manufacture
and sale of rechargeable batteries, electric vehicles and related
products and provision of related services (the “Electric Vehicle
Business”).

Details of the principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries
are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

China Trustful Group Limited Bl 2= £ B AR 2 7

# Z2017412 31 1F E/F

PREZEEEFRARITERRGDRN
2010F6 U E B RERE B R E
1981 RAETMAK L R —EER R
BRAA - HREBRAARERER
BRAR DA RARF K ERRE R
FERR - ARRAIAGFM P ERLLRN
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton, HM 11, Bermuda ° 72 &] ]
FELEEMBURE B SEBIIRN
B NE ZE610-611F o

AAT WM BE2011F1A26BRE R E
BHARZSAR AR (B FT]) GEM
([GEM]) E7 »

RAEMBRRIEAETEY AL
RARBZINEER - BRABIEAI -
ERBEORONEIATAFEER
B ZTR(TET) -

ARBNEBXEBR/RELZR - AEH
MERXBRATFREEEEER A
ERERRIBEMNERES MK
BERAR(ERESER]) NPE
ARKMB(HE)ZEMMEEZSD
pRiRey REBEAREZR(HERSS
XD AR EEREEREM
EFBERAME®RNMEHRMEBRS
(TEgTEXRHKD -

ARAIMBRARIMNEZXRHHBEAR
B M RRIEESS



APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time,
the following new and revised standards, amendments and
interpretations (collectively referred to as the “new and revised
HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), which are effective for the Group’s
financial year beginning from 1 January 2017. A summary of
the new and revised HKFRSs applied by the Group is set out
as follows:

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle
relating to Amendments to
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of
Interests in Other Entities

HKAS 7 (Amendments) Disclosure Initiative

HKAS 12 (Amendments) Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses

Except as described below, the application of other new and
revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact
on the Group’s financial performance and financial position for
the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out
in these consolidated financial statements.

The Group has applied these amendments for the first time in
the current year. The amendments require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including
both cash and non-cash changes. In addition, the amendments
also require disclosures on changes in financial assets if cash
flows from these financial assets were, or future cash flows will
be, included in cash flows from financing activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following to be
disclosed: (i) changes from financing cash flows; (i) changes
arising from obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries or other
businesses; (iii) the effect of changes in foreign exchange rates;
(iv) changes in fair values; and (v) other changes.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2. BRI HiIREE:TIEBHBEHRE

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) HA(TEEUBREENDE)
(Continued)

A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances BEHZEEBE BRI LB RS ﬁ%Z‘é’THE
of these items is provided in note 35 to the consolidated BN E B IRER M FES5 - IRIEEF
financial statements. Consistent with the transition provisions RNZBEAGE $$@Iﬁﬁ&%£¢ﬁ’]
of the amendments, the Group has not disclosed comparative LB E R o BRERE B 7S R 3R B 5E35H)
information for the prior year. Apart from the additional %E SNIR EE AN - FEFﬁEi [EIIRIZE S SN
disclosure in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements, B BmMEREKTE -

the application of these amendments has had no impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised REBIEIRAERTHE RME R
to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective: RERZHEIREETBEBHBRE
AR
HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs BEUMBRE ERMBEREER04FE
2014-2016 Cycle except EAI(EFTA) 2016FEH FELE (R
HKFRS 12 (Amendments)’ BB REENE125% (B
AR
HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs BEMBRE BB REER015FE
2015-2017 Cycle? ER(EETA) 2017 BH 2 F B U
HKFRS 2 (Amendments)  Classification and Measurement ERUBREEN MNRHAEREZINRRHZ
of Share-based Payment F2R (BT PERTE
Transactions'
HKFRS 4 (Amendments)  Applying HKFRS 9 Financial ERUBREEN BAYBEREENENLH
Instruments with HKFRS 4 EYLACHEY TAREBHBHRERER
Insurance Contracts' BARRE A —HER
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments' %%Hff?ﬁttﬁ Il 2RIA
£9%
HKFRS 9 (Amendments)  Prepayment Features with ERUBREEN BBBHEIRAENEE
Negative Compensation? FI% (BT A)
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28  Sale or Contribution of Assets ERARBREED REZRABELNAHAE
(Amendments) between an Investor and its Z10RREE tERAZEELERT
Associate or Joint Venture* S ER Fo8s B
(B3IA)
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with EEMBREEN REEXPEN MERA
Customers and the related F155% CIEH)
Amendments'
HKFRS 16 Leases? ERUBHREEN HE
F16%
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts® %iﬁﬁﬁiiﬁ%ﬁ,ﬂ‘l RERA 43
E175
HKAS 28 (Amendments)  Long-term Interests in Associates BH gL RERARREERE LR
and Joint Ventures? VL LACCHEN) I 72
HKAS 40 (Amendments)  Transfers of Investment Property’ BB RS RENENER
F40% (BT F)
HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and ER(ERBBERE MNERHRBARE
Advance Consideration' ZEZEg)-
2B F25%
HK(FRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax EEERMERE FENRENTRE N
Treatments? ZEZEE)-
REF235
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' Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities, general
hedge accounting and impairment requirements for financial
assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the Group
are:

° All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments
that are held within a business model whose objective
is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting period. Debt instruments that
are held within a business model whose objective is
achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms
that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are generally measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”). All other
debt investments and equity investments are measured
at their fair value at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9 entities may make
an irrecoverable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held
for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

o In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The
expected credit loss model requires an entity to account
for expected credit losses and changes in those expected
credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes
in credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is
no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognised.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk
management policies, the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”) anticipated application of HKFRS 9 in the future
may have the following potential impact on the Group’s financial
assets:

Classification and measurement

° Debt security classified as available-for-sale investments
carried at cost less impairment: this security qualified
for designation as measured at FVTOCI under HKFRS
9, however, the Group plans not to elect the option for
designating this security to be measured at FVTOCI and
will measure this security at fair value with subsequent fair
value gains or losses to be recognised in profit or loss.

° All other financial assets and financial liabilities will
continue to be measured on the same bases as are
currently measured under HKAS 39.

Impairment

In general, the Directors anticipate that the application of the
expected credit loss model of HKFRS 9 will result in earlier
provision of credit losses which are not yet incurred in relation
to the Group’s financial assets measured at amortised costs
and other items that subject to the impairment provisions upon
application of HKFRS 9 by the Group. However, the Directors
do not anticipate that the application of the expected credit
loss model of HKFRS 9 will have material impact to the opening
retained earnings as at 1 January 2018.

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will
supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the
related Interpretations when it becomes effective.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the standard
introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

° Step 1. Identify the contract(s) with a customer
° Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract(s)

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in
relation to the identification of performance obligations, principal
versus agent considerations, as well as licensing application
guidance.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

The Directors have assessed the impact on application of
HKFRS 15 and do not anticipate a material impact on revenue
from sales of goods. However, application of HKFRS 15 may
have impact on the following areas:

When customers are allowed to return the Group’s products,
the Group estimates the level of expected returns and makes an
adjustment against revenue and cost of sales. The Group has
assessed that the application of HKFRS 15 will not materially
affect how the Group recognises revenue and cost of sales
when the customers have a right of return. However, the new
requirement to recognise separately a return asset for the
products expected to be returned will impact the presentation
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group plans to elect to use the cumulative effect transition
method for the application of HKFRS 15 and will recognise the
cumulative effect of initial application as an adjustment to the
opening balance of equity as at 1 January 2018. As allowed
by HKFRS 15, the Group plans to apply the new requirements
only to contracts that are not completed before 1 January
2018. Since the number of “open” contracts for sales of goods
at 31 December 2017 is limited, the Group expects that the
transition adjustment to be made upon the initial application of
HKFRS 15 will not be material.
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HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting treatments
for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS
17 Leases and the related interpretations when it becomes
effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the
basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer.
Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed
for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-
of-use asset and a corresponding liability have to be recognised
for all leases by lessees, except for short-term leases and leases
of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted
for remeasurement of lease liability. The lease liability is initially
measured at the present value of the lease payments that
are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is
adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact
of lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification
of cash flows, the Group currently presents upfront prepaid
lease payments as investing cash flows in relation to leasehold
lands for owned use and those classified as investment
properties while other operating lease payments are presented
as operating cash flows. Under the HKFRS 16, lease payments
in relation to lease liability will be allocated into a principal and
an interest portion which will be presented as financing cash
flows respectively.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised an
asset and a related finance lease liability for finance lease
arrangement and prepaid lease payments for leasehold lands
where the Group is a lessee. The application of HKFRS 16
may result in potential changes in classification of these assets
depending on whether the Group presents right-of-use assets
separately or within the same line at which the corresponding
underlying assets would be presented if they were owned.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and
continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$12,323,000 (2016:
HK$4,671,000) as disclosed in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements. A preliminary assessment indicates that
these arrangements will meet the definition of a lease under
HKFRS 16 and hence the Group will recognise a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these leases
unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases upon the
application of HKFRS 16. In addition, the application of new
requirements may result changes in measurement, presentation
and disclosure as indicated above. However, it is not practicable
to provide a reasonable estimate of the financial effect until the
Directors complete a detailed review.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental
deposits paid of HK$1,893,000 as rights and obligations
under leases to which HKAS 17 applies. Based on the
definition of lease payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits
are not payments relating to the right to use the underlying
assets. Accordingly, the carrying amounts of such deposits
may be adjusted to amortised cost and such adjustments
are considered as additional lease payments. Adjustments
to refundable rental deposits paid would be included in the
carrying amount of right-of-use assets.

Except as described above, the Directors do not anticipate
that the application of other new and revised HKFRSs will have
material impact on these consolidated financial statements.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, which is a
collective term that includes all applicable individual
HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretations issued by the HKICPA and accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM
Listing Rules”) and by the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics
into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the
scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (Continued)

FEETBEBMEE)

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in profit or loss from the date
the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.
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A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls an
investee if all three of the following elements are present:
power over the investee; exposure, or rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee; and the
ability to use its power over the investee to affect the
amount of the investor’s returns. Control is reassessed
whenever facts and circumstances indicate that there may
be a change in any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
receivable.

Property, plant and equipment including building held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset
to its working condition and location for its intended
use. Expenditure incurred after the property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where it can
be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted
in an increase in the future economic benefits expected
to be obtained from the use of the property, plant and
equipment, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional
cost of that asset.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment under construction, which is stated at cost
less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction and capitalised
borrowing costs on related borrowing funds during
the period of construction. Construction in progress is
reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for use.
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Depreciation is recognised so as to write-off the cost of
assets less their residual values over their useful lives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
The principal annual rates are as follows:

Buildings 5%
Leasehold improvements 5%-33%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20%
Plant and machinery 5%—-20%
Motor vehicles 20%

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit
or loss.

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically,
the minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element and building
element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “interest in
leasehold land” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is amortised over the lease term on a
straight-line basis.
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At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (“CGU”)
to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual CGU, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of CGU for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or the CGU) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a
CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined on
first-in-first-out or weighted average basis as appropriate
and, in the case of work in progress and finished
goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less
all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to
make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as cost of sales in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as cost of sales
in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is offset
against the cost of sales in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL’)) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets at FVTPL are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

3.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (Continued)

FEETBEBREE)

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets at FVTPL, available-for-
sale financial assets and ‘loans and receivables’. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined at the time of
initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments other than those financial
assets classified as at FVTPL, of which interest income
is included in other revenue and other income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial asset is (i) contingent consideration that may be
paid by an acquirer as part of a business combination to
which HKFRS 3 applies, (i) held for trading, or (iii) it is
designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling it in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for
trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

° such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

° the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is
managed and its performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with
any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised
in profit or loss. Fair value is determined in the manner
described in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated as available-for-sale or are not
classified as (a) loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity
investments or (c) financial assets as at FVTPL.

Dividend on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group has right to
receive the dividends established.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives
that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of
such unquoted equity investments are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses at the end of each
reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Loans and receivables (including
trade receivables, deposits paid, other receivables
(exclude trade deposits paid), amount due from a related
company, amount due from a director and cash and cash
equivalents) are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting
period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of
the investment have been affected.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

° the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period as
well as observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets that are carried at amortised cost,
the amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the assets’ carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent
periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the investment at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (Continued)

FEETBEBMEE)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

In respect of available-for-sale debt investments,
impairment losses are subsequently reversed through
profit or loss, if an increase in the fair value of the
investment can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as financial liabilities or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (Continued)

FESEHBRBMEE)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables
(exclude receipt in advance and trade deposits received),
secured loan, amount due to a shareholder, amounts
due to non-controlling interests, amounts due to related
companies and convertible bonds) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Convertible bonds

The component parts of the convertible bonds are
classified separately as financial liability and equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument. A conversion option that
will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of
cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of
the Company’s own equity instruments is an equity
instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability
component (including any embedded non-equity
derivatives features) is estimated by measuring the fair
value of similar liability that does not have an associated
equity component.

The conversion option classified as equity is determined
by deducting the amount of the liability component from
the fair value of the compound instrument as a whole. This
is recognised and included in equity, net of income tax
effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. In addition,
the conversion option classified as equity will remain in
equity until the conversion option is exercised, in which
case, the balance recognised in equity will be transferred
to share premium. Where the conversion option remains
unexercised at the maturity date of the convertible note,
the balance recognised in equity will be transferred to
(accumulated losses)/retained earnings. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration
of the conversion option.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Convertible bonds (Continued)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
bonds are allocated to the liability and equity components
in proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds.
Transaction costs relating to the equity component are
charged directly to equity. Transaction costs relating to the
liability component are included in the carrying amount of
the liability portion and amortised over the period of the
convertible bonds using the effective interest method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If
the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
is recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (Continued)

FESEHBRBMEE)

Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its
entirety, the Group allocates the previous carrying amount
of the financial asset between the part it continues
to recognise, and the part it no longer recognises on
the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on
the date of the transfer. The difference between the
carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer
recognised and the sum of the consideration received for
the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain
or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss. A
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part that
continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer
recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled
or have expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or
loss.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the
event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company
or the counterparty.
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Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation. When a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows
(where the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to
settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a
third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is
virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and
the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, they will then
be recognised as a provision.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of
the Group. When inflow is virtually certain, an asset is
recognised.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable
for goods and services supplied, net of value-added tax,
returns, rebates and discounts.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised on transfer
of risks and rewards of ownership, which generally
coincides with the time when the products are delivered
to customers and title is passed.

Revenue from commission income is recognised upon
certain level of sales is achieved.

Revenue from consultancy services income is recognised
when the services are rendered.

Revenue from freight income is recognised when the
services are rendered.

Interest income from financial asset is accrued on a time
basis by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount.

China Trustful Group Limited F Bz &£ B ER A 7

3.

EEBRBEE)

SIREBERADELE 2FFM A
EXZEE RFEEFJTIRE—
FAEZRARIEESHEE %
EARHER MASBEIL TEERT
EEHELERKRENHEEER -
EELCHRTANESKEENRNR -
TEREE -

WAZE WK EZRFE
FHE - WA HEES MK
e AR 7% W Bz SRR (F1 Bk B (B
BoRE - EHIRFTH) -

N
)
0

i E WA A2 BB K
MEBREER  —REEM®
REFRMBEE R ZERNA

o

pu}

I M & o

o 0 2 MR 2 2 O T B 1
—EATHER -

KA &R U s 2 WA TR L
R 75 B RE SR

KA B B W e 2 WA TR B B AR 75

R -

TREEZNBWRATIZERE
BAGBELERBERME 26
MEERG - BEMERQAGMEE
AKREWABBEREERHY
SnERMTRAZEENKRR
FEEZHE -



3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (Continued)

FEETBEBMEE)

All leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed.

Retirement benefit obligations

Payments to Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) and state-managed retirement benefit
schemes are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

The Group operates a MPF Scheme under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
those employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is
a defined contribution scheme, the assets of which are
held in separate trustee-administered funds.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme
at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, with the
employers’ contributions subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$30,000. The Group’s contributions
to the scheme are expensed as incurred are vested in
accordance with the scheme’s vesting scales. Where
employees leave the scheme prior to the full vesting of
the employer’s contributions, the amount of forfeited
contributions is used to reduce the contributions payable
by the Group.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (Continued)

EEWHBRBE ()

Retirement benefit obligations (Continueq)

The employees employed by the Group’s subsidiaries in
PRC are members of state-managed retirement benefit
schemes operated by the government of the PRC.
The subsidiaries are required to contribute a specific
percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefits schemes
operated by the government of the PRC is to make the
specified contributions under the schemes.

Share-based payment expenses

For grants of share options that are conditional upon
satisfying specified vesting conditions, the fair value of
services received is determined by reference to the fair
value of share options granted at the date of grant and is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
with a corresponding increase in share-based payment
reserve.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to
vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with
a corresponding adjustment to share-based payment
reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date
of grant, the fair value of the share options granted is
expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payment reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised
in share-based payment reserve will be transferred to
(accumulated losses)/retained earnings.
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In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise, except for exchange differences on
monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign
operation for which settlement is neither planned nor likely
to occur (therefore forming part of the net investment in
the foreign operation), which are recognised initially in
other comprehensive income and reclassified from equity
to profit or loss on disposal or partial disposal of the
Group’s interests.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expense
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
that period, in which case the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
“translation reserve” (attributed to non-controlling interests
as appropriate).
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (Continued)

FEETBEBREE)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition of a
foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (Continued)

FEETBEBMEE)

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before income
tax’ as reported in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income because it
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they
are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises
from the initial accounting for a business combination,
the tax effect is included in the accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly
to the Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or
class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share
a majority of these criteria.

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent.

3.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(i

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vi)

(i)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others);

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member);

both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)() has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); or

the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources,
services or obligation between the Group and a related
party, regardless of whether a price is charged.

Close family members of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Directors are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and underlying assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

3.
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The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

The aging debt profile of trade receivables is reviewed on a
regular basis to ensure that the trade receivable balances are
collectible and follow up actions are promptly carried out if
the agreed credit periods have been exceeded. However, from
time to time, the Group may experience delays in collection.
Where recoverability of trade receivable balances are called
into doubts, specific provisions for bad and doubtful debts
are made based on credit status of the customers, the aging
analysis of the trade receivables balances and write-off history.
Certain receivables may be initially identified as collectible, yet
subsequently become uncollectible and result in a subsequent
write-off of the related receivables to the profit or loss. Changes
in the collectability of trade receivables for which provisions are
not made could affect our results of operations.

Fixed assets with finite useful lives are depreciated and
amortised over their economic useful lives. The assessment of
estimated useful lives is a matter of judgement based on the
experience of the Group, taking into account factors such as
technological progress, changes in market demand, expected
usage and physical wear and tear. Useful lives are periodically
reviewed for continued appropriateness. Due to long lives of
assets, changes to the estimates used can result in variations
in their carrying amounts.
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The Group test whether property, plant and equipment and
interest in leasehold land suffered any impairment whenever
an impairment indication exists. In accordance with note 3
to the consolidated financial statements, an impairment loss
is recognised for the amount by which the carrying amount
of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, it is reasonably
possible, based on existing knowledge, that outcomes within
the next financial period that are different from assumptions
could require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
property, plant and equipment and interest in leasehold land.

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining provision for
taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises tax liabilities based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the year in which
such determination is made.

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and selling expenses. These estimates are based
on the current market condition and the historical experience
on selling goods of similar nature. It could change significantly
as a result of change in market condition. The Directors will re-
assess the estimations at the end of each reporting period.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Valuation of contingent consideration receivable

As part of the identifiable asset acquired in business
combination, profit guarantee is valued at fair value at
the acquisition date with the best estimates of the future
outcome of the future events. Where the profit guarantee
meets the definition of a financial asset, it is subsequently re-
measured to fair value at the end of each reporting periods.
The determination of the fair value is based on the expected
adjustment on consideration paid. The key assumption takes
into consideration the probability of meeting each profit target.

A FEERRZIEERRGE)

FEW sl R E 2B
EREBARMKBZAZRNEE
B — & - AR E TR R URE B
ZRFERBARSHZARGERZ &
EHFETHEE - HENRETAS
MEEZEER AHERKREREH
REHAEERAFE - A FETIRIE
HENKEFELZENARTUEE -
TEBRREAENEBZTRENBFRZA
Bk -

REVENUE [N
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET

Sales of goods: BmigE

- Watches 7 54,234 70,642
- Display & packaging products - PR3 & 16,734 31,659
- Jewelries - %E 3,724 7,270
— Silverware - iReE 46,226 69,135
— Electric vehicles and related products - EHAERBEBEER 387,439 105,417
- Porcelain - A& 11,323 -
Commission and consultancy fee income RBe&kibRBIMA 68,578 18,480
Freight income Ea A 286 665
588,544 303,268
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OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

H il A\ & H fth Wy 2=

Interest income F B U A
Foreign exchange gain T
Government grants (note) R AT B (B 22)
Sundry income ES DN N

Note: Government grants of approximately HK$954,000 (2016: HK$1,437,000)
have been received during the year ended 31 December 2017 in relation
to a tax benefit regime entitled to a subsidiary of the Group for operating
in E)8™& LT #[& (Shanghai Jinshan Industrial Zone*). There were
no unfulfiled conditions or contingencies relating to these government
grants.

for identification purposes only

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The management reviews the Group’s internal reporting for
performance assessment between segments and resource
allocation. The management has determined the operating
segments based on business lines (products and services)
and geographical areas. The management has determined that
the Group is organised into three main operating segments: (i)
Sourcing Business; (i) PRC Silverware Business; and (jii) Electric
Vehicle Business. The management measures the performance
of the segments based on their respective segment results.

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THET
1,134 264
1,780 788
954 1,437
384 61
4,252 2,550

Bet: BZE2017FE12A31ALEE  EREZK
JiF 7 Bh £9954,0007% 7T (20164F : 1,437,000
BLT)EAESEREET@LIEREES
W—RENBRARMZANREEELNER
B8 o 3% 5 BUIT # B 4805 I 1) oK 2 B A6 1
K ARBR ©

D EEE
EEBRISAEBNATREAESD
HRERSEPHRBETTIMG - &
BERER(ERKRE) Ribi%E o
RESE - EEBOHEESAEEE
BohB-—AXELENH  ((\ERES
X% () PBRIRBRER: R(i)EB/TE
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. SEBEHE(E)
The principal products and services of each of these operations ZEERSANTIBERIRBEOT

are as follows:

Sourcing Business

ERBRSEB

PRC Silverware Business

R 2R X TS

Electric Vehicle Business

BERTIEER

Provision of sourcing (including product design, product development,
raw material sourcing and production outsourcing) and procurement
(including quality and assurance control, logistics and delivery
handling service) solutions to customers for production of watches,
costume jewelries, and display and packaging products

RAZFRHELEER AERBELRIBCEGNERES(BREE
mRa  EmfAE  RMHRBREENARRKBEEEE8RYE
REEE] -~ ) R AR BRR 5 &R

Retail and wholesale of luxury brand silverware, silver utensils and luxury
goods in the PRC
REBETERMEEZRERS RETAREC®

Research and development, manufacture and sale of rechargeable
batteries, electric vehicles and related products and provision of
related services

e LEREERED EBTERBBE®DIL I HEARERS
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7.
Segment revenue and segment results

Information regarding the Group’s reportable operating
segments including the reconciliations to profit before income

tax are as follows.

Year ended 31 December 2017

Reportable segment revenue

(note (a))

Reportable segment (loss)/profit

Interest income

Loss arising in fair value change
of contingent consideration
receivable

Corporate income and expenses

Profit before income tax

Adjusted (loss)/earnings before
interest, tax, depreciation and
amortisation (note (b))

TEER ()
58 W N\ R 53 5 3 4R

BRAARBEAREL

s 5
Ak

P& (B

EHRAGHANEN B RIWAT -

PRC

Electric

Sourcing Silverware Vehicle
Business Business Business Total
EREES cGEHRE EFHRE
EY EY ¥¥ et
HK$’000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$’000
FETT FETT FE T FE T
HE20174
12A31B L EE
BEETE T ON
(K17 (@) 63,275 69,252 456,017 588,544
BE
(B8])/ & F (7,269) 40,368 122,731 155,830
) BIA 1,134
FEU AR AB
&8 (4,511)
TERARAX (19,785)
B B 1% %5 ai itk #1 132,668
KRERFE
HE MER
5 AT (B 18)/
B (H £ ®) (6,930) 41,615 135,054 169,739
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7.
Sourcing
Business
BEREE
ES S
HK$'000
FETT
Year ended 31 December 2016 HZE2016%F
12A318EFE
Reportable segment revenue BE R N
(note (a)) (#1it(a) 110,236
Reportable segment profit B il 6,783
Interest income 2R A
Loss arising in fair value change FEU AR AB
of contingent consideration ANEEEHMESE
receivable Z BB
Corporate income and expenses TERARFAS
Profit before income tax BR AT 45 350 Al a2 A1
Adjusted earnings before interest, KRAERME
tax, depreciation and amortisation ~ FHIE - 78 K E
(note (b)) A& A (# 72 (b)) 7177

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies. Segment results
represent profit earned/(loss suffered) by each segment without
allocation of interest income, loss arising in fair value change of
contingent consideration receivable, and central administrative
income and expenses including partial other revenue and
other income, directors’ remuneration and partial finance costs
under the heading of “corporate income and expenses”. This
is the measure reported to management for the purposes of
performance assessment between segments and resource
allocation.
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PRC Electric

Silverware Vehicle
Business Business Total

HERE  BHAE
£ 7% st

HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
FAET FAET FAET

75,749 117,283 303,268

38,496 12,574 57,853

264

(1,275)
(17,762)

39,080

40,388 19,253 66,818
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments assets

and liabilities are as follows:

At 31 December 2017

Reportable segment assets
Unallocated assets

Total assets

Reportable segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities

Total liabilities

At 31 December 2016
Reportable segment assets
Unallocated assets

Total assets

Reportable segment liabilities

Unallocated liabilities

Total liabilities

#20175%12A31H
AREDSHEE
KOBEE

HaE

]
SR
= o
w9
o ok

m

y
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m
i

MR2016F12 A31H
AREDLHEE
KOBEE

REE

ok

1=

T

/

ARE DAL

RAoEAE

BAE

Sourcing
Business

ERESE

£ 35
HK$°000
FET

44,227

SR (E)

SHEER A

75 10 2 B 98 45 9 B 2 IR B MR
SR

PRC Electric

Silverware Vehicle
Business Business Total

hE$REE SEE;HRE
E EX @t
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FETT FETT FETT

86,127 633,401 763,755

7,607

141,738

905,493

4,361 174,201 186,169

64,400

66,642

252,811

84,699 223,428 372,527

20,222

30,270

402,797

8,020 82,409 110,651

For the purpose of monitoring performance assessment
between segments and resource allocation, all assets and
liabilities are allocated to the reportable segments other
administrative purposes
including partial property, plant and equipment, prepayment
for property, plant and equipment, contingent consideration
receivable, available-for-sale financial assets, partial deposits,
prepayments and other receivables, prepaid tax, partial cash
and cash equivalents, partial other payables, amount due to a
shareholder, partial amounts due to non-controlling interests,
secured loan, tax payables and deferred tax liability.

than those that are for central

34,148

144,799
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DEEEE)

Other segment information Hith 5 & &
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or ARETENHERI O BEEN R

segment assets:

PRC Electric
Sourcing  Silverware Vehicle
Business  Business  Business Unallocated Total

GRgEs TPEKE THRE

E 30 25 E 30 RHE )
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET

Year ended 31 December 2017 # E2017%12A318
LEE
Loss arising in fair value change of ERFIARBATEED
contingent consideration receivable MELAZER - - - 4,511 4,511
Interest income M EHA - - - 1,134 1,134
Finance costs REKK - - 3,663 900 4,563
Amortisation of interest in leasehold land A& + g B 5k - - 467 - 467
Depreciation of property, plant and nE- BREREERE
equipment 339 1,247 11,856 374 13,816
Written-off of property, plant and equipment #1% + Bi= I & s i 34 - 937 350 8 1,295
Write-down of obsolete inventories REFE M 275 - - - 275
Additions to non-current assets (1ote ()  FERBEERE
(Hi#() 42 - 2,187 352 2,581
Year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016%12A431H
IHFE
Loss arising in fair value change of ERSIAREATEED
contingent consideration receivable MEEAZER = = - 1,275 1,275
Interest income MEKA - - - 264 264
Finance costs REKK = o 4,057 900 4,957
Amortisation of interest in leasehold land A& + i g% B ik = = 272 = 272
Impairment loss recognised in respect of S EHERFEMER L
trade receivables AEER 8 = = = 8
Depreciation of property, plant and N BEREENE
equipment 394 1,891 6,405 349 9,039
Written-off of property, plant and equipment #1% + i 55 J & & #i & = 112 = = 12
Write-down of obsolete inventories BREFEHRA 170 = = = 170
Additions to non-current assets (note ()  FERBEERE
(W) 24 2,008 122,349 19 124,490
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue generated from
external customers. There were no inter-segment sales in the current year
(2016: nil).

Adjusted (loss)/earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and
amortisation is also a measurement basis regularly reviewed by the
directors in performance assessment between segments and resources
allocation. This measurement basis is consistent with that of the segment
results except that finance costs, depreciation of property, plant and
equipment and amortisation of interest in leasehold land are not included
in the adjusted (loss)/earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and
amortisation.

Addition to non-current assets represents additions to property, plant and
equipment and interest in leasehold land.

The Group’s operations are mainly located in Hong Kong (place
of domicile) and the PRC. The Group’s revenue by geographical
locations is determined based on location at which the services

were

provided or the goods were delivered, or on shipment

destination instructed by customers. The Group’s non-current
assets by geographical locations are determined based on
physical location of the assets.

SWER(E)
Hrat -

(@) EXR2H|E D BMBATEINEBEPWKA
WARFERE 5 FPHE 8 E (20165 : ) °

(b) BEETFHRMALARKRNE  HE FE
K& (BE) BF - (ERT R ERE
RERERDEHFTEELE - It BE
EEDPEA T ELEHERAE B
HEREHN (R, BITEER
BRA ¥ BERIKBHEREEL
b B o

(© FRBEERNBEREME  BMERRBERE
MEELTHERRE -

AEBNEBTEUNES () &
FE - AEERERE DK AZLE
HERBEARXNEDHHE TP IE T
MEBMNMETE - AREIRMBERE| D H
HRBDEEREEERBIETE -
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DEEEE)

Geographical information (Continued) EEEE)
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue by AEEZRMWERESHKASTAT

geographical locations:

Revenue from external

customers
KEIMBEEBWA
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FAE T
Hong Kong (place of domicile) BB (FEH) 14,135 27,746
The PRC, excluding Hong Kong PR TBEERE 520,592 184,908
United States of America ENBERE 13,826 32,453
Europe M 33,808 47,174
Asia M 1,335 2,084
Southeast Asia R 2,549 -
Oceania RF M 2,180 8,903
Others EHAh 119
Total it 588,544 303,268
The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of non- NTREEECTEESRIA)FRE
current assets (excluding financial instruments) analysed by the WM EESHIERDEERMED
geographical locations in which the assets are located: #r

Non-current assets

ERHEE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Hong Kong (place of domicile) BB (FrE ) 4,026 1,275
The PRC, excluding Hong Kong HE - TBEERE 108,734 114,235
Total BEt 112,760 115,510
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7.

Revenue from customers for the years ended 31 December
2017 and 2016 contributing over 10% of the total revenue of
the Group are as follows:

SBMER(E)

HPERE Z2017F Kk2016F12 A31H 1+
FEAAEEERBKAI0O%U EMNE
SN INE

2017 2016
Reporting segments HK$’000 HK$'000
HRES FET FET
Customer A (Note i) Sourcing Business N/A 77,388
BPA (K ati) ERESXER iEH
Customer B (Note i) PRC Silverware Business N/A 48,689
BFEB (M) B8R 25 R 7 RER
Customer C Electric Vehicle Business 258,954 106,974
BPFC BEAEER
Customer D (Note ij) Electric Vehicle Business 173,525 N/A
B FD (#fatii) BEAIEXRDK A 3

Except as disclosed above, no other customers contributed
10% or more of the Group’s total revenue for both years.

Notes:

(i) Revenue derived from Customer A and Customer B did not contribute
10% or more to the Group’s total revenue during the year ended
31 December 2017.

(i) Revenue derived from Customer D did not contribute 10% or more to
the Group’s total revenue during the year ended 31 December 2016.

BrEXFAIRBEEI  RMEFE - $HE
Hip 2P R R BB ATHKI10%K A
EHER

B iz -

(i) HZE2017F12AIALEFE  RERFA
REFBHIU A £ A 7K £ F 48U A 3R
10% 3 A EE R -

(ii) HZE2016F12A31BLEEE © REAKFDH

WO 0 4 5 7R 52 B 48 U AN BR10% 31 A £
BBt -
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8. FINANCE COSTS 8. HWERAE

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Interest on secured loan BEAERZFE 900 900
Imputed interest on convertible bonds (note 25) Al EHF 2 HE R B
(Kt £ 25) 3,663 4,057
4,563 4,957
9. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 9. KRFABEH&R
Profit before income tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BrETAE R AR R R GIA)V AT &
HBES:
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FETT
Auditors’ remuneration: 1% SR B &
- Audit service - BEZR 630 599
- Non-audit services - EE R 147 168
777 767
Impairment loss recognised in respect of trade Ht & 5 & 4¢3 I8 i #E 32
receivables OB EE B - 8
Cost of inventories sold HEFEKAR 382,283 200,752
Amortisation of interest in leasehold land T 4 e s 467 272
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment %1% - M E R REITE 13,816 9,039
Net foreign exchange gain R (1,780) (788)
Operating lease charges in respect of land and i 1 i 2 18 5 By 48 &
buildings HEXH 5,272 5,588
Employee benefit expenses (including EERMAX
directors’ remuneration): (BREESEH) :
— Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind %o FME
B = 30,930 30,037
- Retirement benefit scheme contributions - RIREFIFT 8 3K 1,925 1,854
32,855 31,891
Written-off of property, plant and equipment 472 - & & & 3% & Hfl #4 1,295 112
Write-down of obsolete inventories (included in R & 17 & A
cost of sales) (FFA 88 & Ak 2AN) 275 170
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10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

10. FiIFBiFAX

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THET

Current tax:
— Hong Kong Profits Tax
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax

Over provision in prior years:
— Hong Kong Profits Tax

Deferred tax:
— credit for the year (hote 26)

B EA LA
- BAENER
- FEBEMER

BEFE BB
- BANEHR

EERLIA -
-FRER
(B i£26)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years. PRC subsidiaries are subject
to PRC Enterprise Income Tax at 25% for both years.

- 1,047
41,591 14,521
41,591 15,568

- (80)
41,591 15,488

(605) (669)
40,986 14,819

& B M F T IR M8 F E 6 14 5t e R
1348 7 JA16.5% B Bt R 51 & o b B[] 8
AR P E 4 R 78 12 25% B B 3R B4R
FREMGERMAER -
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 10. Fi#HEAX(E)

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the REERMEHMHATHEGEEREA
profit before income tax per the consolidated statement of profit 2R =R A BRETE T ANE F 2
or loss and other comprehensive income as follows: HERMTR
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
F # T FET
Profit before income tax B P15 B A1 5 A 132,668 39,080
Tax calculated at tax rates applicable to the ZHEBEAERNEB
jurisdictions concerned MEGTENRIEA 35,851 10,789
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses IR b4
MG E 3,036 4,916
Tax effect of non-taxable income BARBBLAR
Mg e (320) (106)
Accelerated accounting depreciation over tax MREFTFEBL TR
depreciation under provided I E B (548) (614)
Tax effect of estimated tax loss not recognised KR A B EEH
M 3,048 33
Tax effect of utilisation of estimated tax losses not 2 FA ok #& 52 1 51 B 15 /65
recognised BB E (81) (119)
Over provision of tax in prior years BAFERIEBERE - (80)
Income tax expense FrsfiAx 40,986 14,819
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused RmEMRR AEEE RS A MG
estimated tax losses of approximately HK$46,250,000 (2016: i %5 /&5 18 4946,250,00078 7T (20164F :
HK$12,456,000) available for offset against future profits. No 12,456,000/% 7T) * °] A fE K §5 K 2R &
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of tax F o ARFBHREFETETE L -
losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams and WARBKEEBEERERELEHRIBEE
unrecognised tax losses could be carried forward indefinitely. BAERMGEBAEREE -
11. DIVIDENDS 1. IR
No final dividend was paid or proposed during the year, nor FAMEBRNIBRRARE BE
has any dividend been proposed by the Board of Directors EENEESERREPRBIRZFELMA
subsequent to the end of the reporting period. &2 e
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12.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The computations of basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company are based on the
following data:

12. SikEF

ARBBEBANBEEREARE TR
MTBATRBEREETE

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Earnings 27
Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings REREARBANME 2
per share (profit for the year attributable B (RRREE AR
to owners of the Company) MERRF) 77,222 10,328
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: BEEELER R
Interest on convertible bonds, net of tax AR &SR ZF A
(F0FR A 1H) 3,058 -
Earnings for the purpose of diluted earnings REREERFNE 2
per share & F 80,280 10,328
2017 2016
‘000 ‘000
TR F A&
Number of shares I3 8B
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for st ERERBF TS 2
the purpose of basic earnings per share TR I RE 2,111,483 1,550,540
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: BEBEL AR 2 FE
Share options B8 A% 4 34,767 33,204
Convertible bonds AT R & 486,715 -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for #t& M # 5&8F M= 2
the purpose of diluted earnings per share 3 A% N AE 19 & 2,632,965 1,583,744

As the Company’s outstanding convertible bonds where
applicable had an anti-dilutive effect to the diluted earnings per
share calculation for the year ended 31 December 2016, the
conversion of the above potential dilutive shares is not assumed
in the calculation of diluted earnings per share.

AN R A] M AR 1T Y AT R AR (& 5 (1M
A Y E E2016F128318LFE 2
BREFERFCAEAERBERE
BRI EERBEERNGT BEREE
BREMBEEHERD -
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13. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE 13. EERAZEEHA T EFHM
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the RIE#EBZGEM Em AR KB B AT
applicable GEM Listing Rules and the disclosure requirement BRI ZHEBRE AFEESHEE
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows: FEAH

Retirement

benefit

Discretionary scheme
bonuses contribution Total

BHET
e BETEAL ot BB K @zt
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET

Year ended 31 December 2017 BE2017E12AMBLEE

Executive Directors: BITES:
Fei Jie A 1,200 - - 1,200
Fung Chi Kin (retired on 8 May 2017) B &E (7R2017F5 8B &) 639 - - 639
Ng Chin Ming Stephen hEH(R2017F3R108EE )

(appointed on 10 March 2017) 971 100 15 1,086
Zhang Genjiang (‘Mr. Zhang’) ERI(ERE]

(appointed on 9 May 2017) (R2017F5 9B EZ F) 65 - - 65

Independent non-executive Directors: B JF#{TE = :

Cheung Siu Wah RAE(R2017E58B R T)

(retired on 8 May 2017) 83 - - 83
Jim Yiu Ming ERH 240 20 - 260
Sit Sai Hung, Billy Btk 300 25 - 325
Shen Ruolei LER 240 20 - 260

3,738 165 15 3,938
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13. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE 13. EERAZRE FH A L 84 % bl

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued) (4&)
Retirement
benefit
Discretionary scheme
Fees bonuses contribution Total
BRI R
ik BiEEa STEIER Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FHET
Year ended 31 December 2016 B ZE2016F12A31B L FE
Executive Directors: HIES:
Fei Jie BA 1,200 - - 1,200
Fung Chi Kin B 1,800 100 - 1,900
Independent non-executive Directors: B FHMITES
Cheung Siu Wah RAE 240 20 = 260
Jim Yiu Ming ERH 240 20 - 260
Sit Sai Hung, Billy i 300 20 = 320
Shen Ruolei nEE 218 = = 218
3,998 160 - 4158
Mr. Ng Chin Ming Stephen has also been appointed as Chief LRBEENEZTAENTESEE
Executive Officer upon appointment as executive Director. NMEEZERITHER -
There was no arrangement under which a director waived HZEZ2017F K2016F12A31H L FE -
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the years ended N # {T {A] 2 5 AR 3E 3K A B AREE A T B
31 December 2017 and 2016. TERHE
During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, no HE2017F K2016F12A31H LFE -
emoluments were paid by the Group to the Directors as REFBWERMESSINEMNMS - £
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as BEREMBRNINERE R EE
compensation for loss of office. BB o
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13. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)
The five highest paid individual consisted of two (2016: two)
Directors, details of whose remuneration are reflected in the
analysis presented above. Details of remuneration of the
remaining three (2016: three) highest paid individual are as

13. EERABERESH AT 195 B
(4&)
hEEeFALTBIEME (0165 W
FIEE  BREHFWNFBN EXAYE
DT - Heg=2F(2016%F : =5)
BEERHFALTHHFRNFBOT

follows:
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e ERMNEYAN S 5,204 5,336
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RONTE T 5T 25 54 54
5,258 5,390

The remuneration of the remaining three (2016: three) individuals
with the highest remuneration are within the following bands:

Hep =2 (Q016F : =R) &S FALH
HOBRIATEHE

Number of individuals

N
2016

2017

Nil-HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,0007% 7T

HK$1,000,001-HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 7T & 2,000,000 7T 2 2
HK$2,000,001-HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 7T &3,000,0007% 7T 1 1
3 3
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - WERE

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Plant and Motor Construction
Buildings improvements  equipment  machinery vehicles in progress Total
HE KER
LB HERE #E BERMESE RE ERIR @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
Cost B
At 1 January 2016 R201641A1A - 5,775 2,707 4,948 1,577 - 16,007
Additions NE 50,888 168 1,207 47,180 2,725 960 103,128
Disposals W = = (26) = = = (26)
Written-off g = (168) = = = = (168)
Exchange alignments ERAE (2,750) (288) (121) (2,466) (146) (31) (5,802)
At 31 December 2016 and R2016F12A318 Kk
at 1 January 2017 2017F1A18 48,138 5,487 3,767 49,662 4,156 929 112,139
Additions NE - 1,684 451 507 - 39 2,681
Disposals P = = 43) = = = 43)
Written-off e - (3464) (89) (407) @ - (3.962)
Transfer i = = 145 815 - (960) -
Exchange alignments ERRE 3,614 237 149 3,433 161 33 7627
At 31 December 2017 2017612 A31R 51,752 3,844 4,380 54,010 4,315 4 118,342
Accumulated depreciation R E
At 1 January 2016 1201651418 - 1,839 1,844 4,199 774 - 8,656
Charge for the year FRXH 1,381 1,716 448 5,050 444 - 9,039
Eliminated on disposals T 5 95 84 = = (17) = = = (17)
Written-off Wi = (56) = = = = (56)
Exchange alignments EHAE 48) (139) (57) (166) (15) = (425)
At 31 December 2016 and R2016F12A318 Kk
at 1 January 2017 2017F1A1R 1,333 3,360 2,218 9,083 1,203 - 17,197
Charge for the year FRXH 2,361 1,013 550 9,177 715 = 13,816
Eliminated on disposals T 5 35 84 = = 40) = - - (40)
Written-off e = (2,528) (23) (116) - - (2,667)
Exchange alignments EHAE 197 118 32 716 42 = 1,105
At 31 December 2017 M2017512A31R 3,891 1,963 2,137 18,860 1,960 - 29,411
Carrying amounts RE{E
At 31 December 2017 120175128318 47,861 1,881 1,643 35,150 2,355 H 88,931
At 31 December 2016 20166124318 46,805 2,127 1,549 40,579 2,953 929 94,942
The Group’s buildings are located in the PRC held on medium- AREBWEFAN PR - WAFEHE
term leases. ERA-
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14.

15.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, included in the
additions of property, plant and equipment amounted to
approximately HK$98,806,000, was satisfied by issuance of
convertible bonds (note 37(a) to the consolidated financial

14.

ME BERREE)
HZE2016F12A31HILLFE - W% - &
B RFEEBRE L F98,806,000/ 7T + MA
BT R EH T (AR & B 15 R Bt
FE37(@a)) °

statements).

INTEREST IN LEASEHOLD LAND

Cost

At 1 January 2016
Additions

Exchange alignments

At 31 December 2016 and at 1 January 2017
Exchange alignments

At 31 December 2017

Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2016
Amortisation for the year
Exchange alignments

At 31 December 2016 and at 1 January 2017
Amortisation for the year
Exchange alignments

At 31 December 2017

Carrying amount
At 31 December 2017

At 31 December 2016

The Group’s interest in leasehold land is located in the PRC

held on medium-term lease.

15, HETHED

HK$’000
FETT

5%
201651718 -
NE 21,362
P 5 (1,155)
MN20164E12 A318 k201741 A1 20,207
PE AR 1,526
M2017F12 A31H 21,733
- 3
2016517318 -
AREE #E 272
b N 8)
MR20164E12 A318 k201741 A1H 264
R E 467
P 5 38
M2017F12 A31H 769
AR B
®2017%E12A31H 20,964
M2016412 A31H 19,943

AFRHBEERA o

AEBENHEHEL ESEM N FE - I

During the year ended 31 December 2016, additions of interest
in leasehold land of approximately HK$21,362,000, was satisfied
by issuance of convertible bonds (note 37(a) to the consolidated
financial statements).
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16. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

16. TTHHEESMEAE

Non-current FEEDHA
Unlisted equity security in Hong Kong, at cost K AGFEREBEHN
(Note (a)) JEETIRAE S
(H1 L (a)
Current BDHA
Unlisted debt securities in the PRC, at cost TR AGT 2R P ER
(Note (b)) FLETEBE?
(K &)
Notes: et -
(a) The above unlisted investment represented investment in unlisted equity (a)

security issued by private entity incorporated in Hong Kong. Unlisted
equity investment was measured at cost less impairment at the end of
the reporting period because the range of reasonable fair value estimates
was so significant that the Directors were of the opinion that fair value
cannot be measure reliably.

The Directors assessed the recoverable amount of unlisted equity
security with the basis of past performance, management expectation
for market development and certain key assumption. Based on the
above assessment, the Directors considered that there is no indication
that material decline or adverse changes in the market in which investee
operated occurred and the Directors considered that the cost of
investment was considered to be recoverable, thus no impairment loss
was recognised for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Upon subscription of the unlisted equity securities, the Group has
the right, exercisable during the period commencing on the second
anniversary of the completion of subscription and ended one month
thereof, to require Mr. Zhang and/or an independent third party to
purchase the subject shares at the consideration of HK$9,000,000 if the
investee is loss making on such second anniversary.

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THET

- 9,000

3,122 -
3,122 9,000

LI ETEREREHETEEMMAILAFL
ABBMBETHNIFLTRAESFZRE -
HREEAFEMBFZHBERKN  URE
ERREQFETREAIFERE - FHitdE
ERRAREERE R REZRAHBRRE

HE-

EERBBERA  BEEYMBERZ
FERRE TEZREATEIELTRAFES
MAIREI S5 - EREMTEER  EF
RAVTEFRKRAREHRELEMETS
EREATBATFES  BESZRAR
BEARSRARWE - BB E20169F12 8
1AL FEI EERREERE -

RNRBEIFLMBRAESR - HIREHRR
E_ERFEEER AEEERNRE
FHREKEE_BFEMNEARERREE
HAEREREBFEREA—EALHHE
NITEEER  BRERER HBILE
=77 AR B 9,000,000/ THE B Z R AR5 -

ANNUAL REPORT



130

16.

17.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(@)

(Continueq)

On 8 November 2017, the Group served the exercise notice on Mr.
Zhang an executive director and a substantial shareholder of the
Company, to exercise the put option right attached to the available-for-
sale financial assets, and require Mr. Zhang to purchase the subject
shares at the consideration of HK$9,000,000. The exercise of put option
is constituted as connected transaction under Chapter 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules. Details of exercise of put option is set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 8 November 2017.

The above unlisted debt securities represent structured contracts entered
into with a bank in the PRC with a principal sum of RMB2,600,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$3,122,000). The debt securities are
principal unprotected with no predetermined or guaranteed return.
The amount would be repaid to the Group anytime upon request, and
therefore, the amount is classified as current assets.

INVENTORIES

16. THHESMEEE)

Wit - ()

(@)

17. &

Raw materials JR M &
Work in progress £ & o
Finished goods P on

Inventories are expected to be recovered within one year.

The cost of

inventories recognised as expenses and

included in ‘cost of sales’ with the amount of approximately
HK$382,283,000 (2016: HK$200,752,000), which included

write-down of obsolete

inventories of approximately

HK$275,000 (2016: HK$170,000).
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(%)

M2017F11 A8H » NEBE RAR R ZHTT
ESRTITERRETEFLTFERNE -
LAFT G AT 4 (H & £ 50 8 B AT P 2 R0h B
¥ - 3 ZSKE 5T A AR (B 9,000,000 T
ERZMRG o BIEGEM LR A E20%E -
TERRERERRERS - TTHEREH
2 FBEHRARARBE A2017F11A8H
B A o

FMFEETEFEHFIEE -—RPERT
FINREBEEY  HASBEAARKE
2,600,0007T (18 & 7 493,122,000/ JT) °
BEEHRBIFRA - B W EFELEE R
FHER - ZHXBEBREREHEREE A
S8 At ZRAEI>EARBEE -

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THET
8,350 9,167
11,668 6,085
13,720 30,923
33,738 46,175

FERBER—FARKM -

BRAMIWEAABEEXNEAINFE
B 2N 49 £&382,283,0005 7T (20164 :
200,752,000 7T) * B & R & 77 & #
B #7275,000/%8 7T (20164F : 170,000/%5

JC) °



18.

CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLE 18. FEWHAKE
The balance represents the contingent consideration receivable 4= #2455 8 U B Core Kingdom Limited
in relation to the acquisition of Core Kingdom Limited and its K E KB A7) (454 &lCore Kingdom
subsidiaries (collectively referred as “Core Kingdom Group”) SEDzERSKABEED R201562 A4
completed on 27 February 2015 (the “Completion Date”). 27A([EKBER]) TR o RS ARE
Contingent consideration receivable has been designated at RYIFHEREIEE AR AFEFGTARE
financial assets at FVTPL upon initial recognition and measure ENERMEE  WRBEHARELF
at fair value at the end of the reporting period. The movement BitE BRI AREBECAFTEEDY
of the fair value of contingent consideration receivable are as R
follow:
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FAET
At 1 January M A1E 7,107 8,382
Compensation from profit guarantee (note 20) i M (R & 2 f (A
(Htit20) (2,596) -
Loss arising in fair value change ARFEEHEELECEE (4,511) (1,275)
At 31 December W12 A31H - 7,107

Note:

Shortfall payment in respect of profit guarantee

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement (“SPA”) entered in relation
to the acquisition, the vendor has guaranteed that the audited profit
after tax of W T M B LB E BB QA (Zhejiang Tong Yin Precious
Metal Operation Company Limited”) (“Tong Yin”) and its subsidiary
for the three financial years ended 31 December 2015, 31 December
2016 and 31 December 2017 shall not be less than RMB20,000,000,
RMB24,000,000 and RMB30,000,000 respectively.

In case the profit guarantee is not fulfilled for the corresponding vyear,
the vendor shall pay 51% of the shortfall (“Shortfall”) to the Company
within seven days of the delivery of the audited consolidated financial
statements, and for the avoidance of doubt, if Tong Yin and its subsidiary
sustained loss for such financial year, 51% of the amount of such loss
shall be included as part of the Shortfall.

The fair value of profit guarantee as at the Completion Date, amounted
to approximately HK$20,536,000.

for identification purposes only

Bt EAREZZBNR

BRERMBEEMIIVUCEEHRE(EE
HEl) BARBENIBRESELEES
RAm (MR ]) R EKHEARRE E2015
F12A381H ~ 2016512 A31H K 20174124
318 IE= R B B 8 2 45 3 4% bR B 14 0 A
15 BT DR A R #20,000,0007T * AR
#24,000,0007T & A & #30,000,0007T °

B RERBEFEREER BHA
RENEERZEAMBHRREFLARR
ARBXNEZR(ERAG1% AR
AEEE - fin B R N EL BT R ) PO A B B AR
EREEEER  IRBRSENI%E
BEEAR  ERE|Z M °

REKBH - & RE
20,536,000/ 7T °

RFEHR

ANNUAL REPORT



During the year ended 31 December 2017, the audited net
profit of Tong Yin and its subsidiary had not satisfied the
profit guarantee, as a result, the vendor is required to make
the shortfall payment to the Company in accordance with the
terms and conditions as stated in the SPA. Therefore, a loss
arising in fair value change of approximately HK$4,511,000
was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income during the year
ended 31 December 2017, and a compensation from profit
guarantee of approximately HK$2,596,000 is recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2017.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the audited net
profit of Tong Yin and its subsidiary has satisfied the profit
guarantee, as a result, the vendor is not required to make the
shortfall payment to the Company in accordance with the terms
and conditions as stated in the SPA.

The fair value of the contingent consideration receivable at
31 December 2016 was based on valuation prepared by
Ascent Partners Valuation Service Limited (“Ascent Partners”),
an independent qualified professional valuer, by using the
expected present value method and a loss arising in fair
value change of approximately HK$1,275,000 was recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

At 31 December 2016, contingent consideration receivable was
classified as current assets approximately to HK$7,107,000.
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REE2017F12A31BILFE - BIE K
HMBRRAZEBZBFFERER
wHARFE - At BEAEAREEE WS
FT5IBA K xR R AG HFR AR RIMER 2=
BT - Bt - REE2017512A31H
HFERGAEEREMEARER
A 7 R 494,511,000 7T K A A F (& £
BmEL BB - RR2017F12 H31H
RER A B 7 AR L 3% 7 58 £92,596,000 74
TLH S FRE 2 ME -

REZE2016F12A31BLLFE @ BIER
HNBRARIZKEZ RN FHEEER
wARE - At - EARERBEER
% BT %1 A & i 30 R R (R AR A R E
ERBMAR -

M2016F12 31 B K E S ARE AT
BEOREBEBYEEREEMGBERMIA
AEZEAARAR (XAD R GE
ERERREEEL  URGaER
REMEPEARZRABRA T EE
518 491,275,00078 7T °

MN20165FE12A318 » pEARBEEZ
& Y sk SRR (B 40 A7,107,00078 7T ©



19.

TRADE RECEIVABLES 19. ESEWRIE
The Group assesses the credit status and imposes credit limits AEEREEEERKARFPHAME
for the customers in accordance with the Group’s credit policy. ERXRAEENEEREE FEHES
The credit limits are closely monitored and subject to periodic SEIFY R WAEEITTE R -
reviews.
The Group normally allows credit period of 30 to 180 days AEB-—RAEFEEFL FI0E180
(2016: 1 to 90 days) to its major customers. Credit period is X (2016F :1ZQ0RK)MEEH - — &
normally not granted to other customers. R TERAEMEPRTEES -
The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables, ERZEAH(ESRESEREAHESR) 2
presented based on the invoice date, which approximates the P2 B 5 EWHIE Rk 54T (B30 5%
respective revenue recognition dates and net of allowance for RERBE) T -
doubtful debts:
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
F & T FAET
0-30 days 0-30Kk 370,544 62,675
31-60 days 31-60K 1,936 4,504
61-90 days 61-90K 172 207
91-180 days 91-180K 4,655 5,310
Over 180 days 180K A £ 4,407 10
381,714 72,706
At 31 December 2017, trade receivables with the amounts of R2017F12 B31H » BN AREBR A AR
approximately HK$375,668,000 (2016: HK$70,069,000) are due B 9 E 5 & i 218 /5 49375,668,00058
from the Group’s top five largest customers. 7t (20164F : 70,069,000 7T) °
The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the FANREREEESNT :
year is as follows:
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
At 1 January MW1A1H - =
Impairment loss recognised BRI E R e - 8
Written-off i 88 - )
At 31 December M12A31H - =
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19.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 19.
During the year ended 31 December 2016, included in the
allowance for doubtful debts were individually impaired trade
receivables with balance of approximately HK$8,000 which had
been placed under liquidation due to financial difficulties. The
Directors had taken recovery actions to collect the outstanding
balance but all attempts were in vain, hence impairment was
made to this individual receivable.

Trade receivables disclosed above include amounts which are
past due at the end of the reporting period for which the Group
has not recognised an allowance for doubtful debts because
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and
the amounts are still considered recoverable. The Group does
not hold any collateral over these balances.

The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables which
are past due but not impaired:

Neither past due nor impaired I £ 480 B ok R (B
1-30 days past due #1 #A1-30K
31-60 days past due #1 HA31-60K
61-90 days past due #1 H61-90K
91-180 days past due #1 H91-180 %
Over 180 days past due #1 HA180 K A £

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the
Directors considers any change in the credit quality of the trade
receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the
end of the reporting period.
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BSEWKRIEE)

H E2016F12A31R L FE & #H 4
8,000 JT K B 2 I8 B & 5 i W 3k IE -
TErARERREE  mMEMBREE 2%
REEERBEEMKRN EFCERINE
HTBAKEREELESG  B5ER
SEED AR - A I ¥ 5% E R E U RIB1E
LR ©

EXBRBEZEGRUKBERBERRE
HACBMZRE AREEERY
BEAERZERADRE B
B - BAKEL EERREEEG - AK
BY B ZEFERTHEAE RS

EBmPERREZESERFEAEZ R
BT

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT THET
285,075 64,431
90,838 8,113
172 152
5,629 10
381,714 72,706

RS AR 2 TR E R -
FEERNABLEREAEREH
KABIERSEU KB (5 REE R
ZEMED -



20.

21.

DEPOSITS,
RECEIVABLES

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER

20.

e FAARERHEMEKRIE

Deposits paid BEffES
Trade deposits paid B Mike
Prepayments TE IR

Compensation from profit guarantee (note 18)
(K1 :#18)

Other receivables

At 31 December 2017, the Group’s other receivables mainly
included guarantee deposits paid to a customer with the
amount of approximately HK$53,022,000. The amount is
expected to be fully recovered within one year.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) RELATED COMPANIES/
A DIRECTOR/A SHAREHOLDER/NON -
CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Amounts due from/(to) related companies/a director/a
shareholder/non-controlling interests are unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the maximum
amount due from a director and a related company is
HK$9,018,000 (2016: nil) and HK$126,000 (2016: HK$454,000)
respectively.

H /& Y 3R I8

i M R 7 2 8

21.

2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT TET
2,247 2,059
9,899 8,465
1,715 1,381
2,596 -
54,060 12,546
70,517 24,451

R2017F12 318 - AN & B #) E b fE UL
FRIBE BB IE 458,022,000 TR EATS
EFRES - ZHBEEAHERN—FR
2 EE o

W (EBHEAEAT —&E
B —ZREERESRIE

FEW (RN BAERA), —RES/ —
BRRFERERFBAREER
RERARERER -

REZE2017F12A31BLFE @ B —
ZEEN - HHREARRERSLHE
% Bl /9,018,000 JT (20164 : ) &
126,000/ 7T (20164 : 454,000/ L) °
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22,

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances
Short-term bank deposits

Bank balances carry interest at floating rates and placed with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default. Short-
term time deposits are made for varying periods of between
one day and three month depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective
short-term time deposit rates ranged from 0.77% to 1.10% p.a.
(2016: 0.34% to 1.29% p.a.).

At 31 December 2017, the Group’s cash and bank balances
denominated in USD and Renminbi (“RMB”) is approximately
HK$36,600,000 and HK$69,460,000 (2016: HK$34,883,000 and
HK$54,398,000) respectively.

RMB is not a freely convertible currency in the PRC and
the remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject to the
foreign exchange control promulgated imposed by the
PRC government. The Group’s cash and cash equivalents
denominated in RMB which are located in Hong Kong is not
subject to the foreign exchange control.

China Trustful Group Limited F Bz &£ B ER A 7

Be RRTHER
EHRITE R

RBeERBEEERY

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THET
172,004 108,799
121,849 18,923
293,853 127,722

IRITAEBRIRZ BRI RETE - WIF AR
METRTHR BEERIT - BHE
HERZHRE—BZ=@EATE T}
BREREBZARBERKME @ L&
BN FEF R0 77EE1.10E (2016 :
FERROBLEF120E) v EHITH 7
AR BREUR B -

R2017F12A31H  AEBE U E T &
ARBETAREBDFENR & IR
11 % % 9 B 49 £36,600,0007% 7T &
69,460,000/ T (20164 : 34,883,000
7 7T %54,398,00078 7)) °

EhE ARBYIFAEmRABZE
®omELTFEzESRPERFET
HINEEGIARE - NEBIAAREG
BENRERREEEBVHERANETL
TRINEE FI PR -



23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

23. B RHMEMNRIEA

Trade payables

Accruals and other payables

Receipt in advance

Trade deposits received

B 5 R RIA

et B A & E A A 3R IA

B IR
BHEWZE

The following is an aging analysis of trade payables, based on

the invoice date:

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THET
114,395 43,845
13,078 8,733
693 126

789 1,288
128,955 53,992

X
e

0-30 days
31-60 days
61-90 days
Over 90 days

0-30K%
31-60K
61-90K
90K E

The average credit period granted by supplier ranging from 30

to 180 days.

RBERAP2IBIRMNRALZER
Tanh

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT T
76,896 15,179
16,064 4,886
17,785 4,968
3,650 18,812
114,395 43,845

HEFETHEEEEHN FI0E180

H o
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24.

SECURED LOAN

Secured loan repayable within one year

BHEBER

The secured loan bears interest at 1% per annum above
the Hong Kong dollar prime lending rate published by The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited and is
repayable together with interest not later than 12 months from
the drawdown date. The loan is fully secured by the share
capital of Powerwell Pacific, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”).
Subject to the fulfilment of certain conditions, the Company
shall have the right to extend the repayment date to another 12
months from the original repayment date.

On 6 February 2017, the Company has extended the repayment
date of the loan to another 12 months from the original
repayment date. On 6 February 2018, the Company signed
another supplemental loan agreement to further extend the
repayment date of the secured loan to another 3 months from
the extended repayment date.

China Trustful Group Limited F Bz &£ B ER A 7

AR—FAEEN

24. FHHFER

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THET
15,000 15,000

EEREFRERSREELEELSRT
ERDREMZ BT HEERFRFF
KIEFE  BAERBREDNAHEDT
BER12E A ZFBE—BFEE - B
Powerwell Pacific (—EZ~A RN & B 5
ZHE(RBEES)FMKIzE
EMBAR) 2 RAEZEHER - BR
R—EBKME  ARARBEBRRZEE
RHEIFEEI2EA -

R20175E2A6H » RARIE K ERNE
EHOHBAREEHHERI2EA - B
2018F2H6H ' ARRIFEF S —HMR
EXmEZ UBBEERERNEZRA
HAREEARHE—TERIMEA -



25.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 1 June 2016, the Company issued unsecured convertible
bonds in the principal amount of HK$110,000,000 to satisfied
the acquisition of property, plant and equipment and interest
in leasehold land (collectively referred to as the “Sale Assets”)
(note 37(a) to the consolidated financial statements). The
bonds are interest-free. The bondholders may convert the
bonds into ordinary shares of the Company at any time prior
to and exclusive of the maturity date on 31 May 2018 at an
initial conversion price of HK$0.55 per share in accordance
with the convertible bonds agreements (subject to adjustment
if necessary). The conversion price was adjusted to HK$0.11
per share and the number of conversion shares were adjusted
from 200,000,000 shares to 1,000,000,000 shares on 4 May
2016 upon the completion of share subdivision. On 25 May
2017, the conversion price was further adjusted to HK$0.109
per share upon completion of placement of new shares. As
at 31 December 2017, the number of convertible shares was
486,715,358 shares. If the bonds have not been converted,
they will be redeemed on 31 May 2018 at principal amount.
The convertible bonds are denominated in HK$ and are shown
under current liabilities at 31 December 2017.

The bond contains two components, liability and equity
elements. The equity element is presented in equity under the
heading of “convertible bonds reserve”. The effective interest
rate of the liability component on initial recognition is 7.41%.

At 1 January MR1A1H
Issuance of convertible bonds
Converted into shares during the year

Imputed interest expenses (note 8)

At 31 December ®12A31H

25.

BTHBKES
FREBRSERN
& & H B X (A28

o] #& i% 15 %

MR2016F6A1H * ARRBITALEA
110,000,000/ T &) AR AT AR (B 5 -
N EYZE - BEREENARE
EtHER(BERIGFEEEDEKSE
B IS 3R R M 5E37(0) - ZEEH R B °
BEIBRESHE  EBFFHEAN
R2018F5A31A | A ("B ¥EZA)
Al £ ] 5 8] % ) 20 8 32 (B § JR0.55/8
T(AIRFERTURAR)BELFER
RANFIERER - BIRENR2016554
ARRMDIFA KB AR EFRONE
JC v MR AR AR 15 £ E $3200,000,0004%
8 # %1,000,000,0000% ° #20174E5A
258  RECEFMR T E - EiaEE—
# T EE FIR01098 T © R20174F12
A318 - # IR IR {7 8 B /486,715,358
B o fHfEHFREER - B R2018F
SABIREAEER - AJMREF B
TTEHEBR2017F 12 A31B5 AR &

(ER

BEFBEMERD (BESDRE=RD
7)o EIPHRERE T[T BRRES
REIZY - AEDHDZEREFERY)
BHERERTMN% °

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
F # T FAE T
47,781 -

- 94,892

- (51,168)

3,663 4,057
51,444 47,781
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26. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY

The following is the major deferred tax balance recognised by

the Group and movements thereon:

At 1 January 2016

Recognised directly in equity

Credit to consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income (note 10)

Release of deferred tax upon conversion of
convertible bonds

At 31 December 2016 and at 1 January 2017

Credit to consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income (note 70)

At 31 December 2017

China Trustful Group Limited F Bz &£ B ER A 7

26. EEHEBARE

R E AR

201651 H1H

EERERTER

FFAGREEE R EMEE KRR
(K1 7%10)

REBRAIRRESRFERRELT
RE

MN2016412 8318 K A 201741H
18

AGABEEREMEEmK R
(Hi#10)

®2017E12H31H

ATRASEERZ T ZEEH AL

Convertible
bonds
AR & 5
HK$'000
FHET

4,170

(669)

(1,822)

1,679

(605)

1,074



27. SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary shares of F1%0.02&TH
HK$0.02 each &
Authorised: ERE
At 1 January M1 A1H
Share subdivision (note j) B {n I 40 (47 721
At 31 December M12H31H
Issued and fully paid: CRTRYER:
At 1 January M1 A1H
Share subdivision (note j) B An I 40 (47 721
Conversion of convertible & # 7] # % {5 55
bonds (note i) (H7 atii)
Placement of new shares B & ¥7 1% (47 aZiii)
(note i)
At 31 December M12A31H

27. BR&

2017 2016
Number of Number of

ordinary Carrying ordinary Carrying
shares amount shares amount
TEREE S T B R BRTAAE
‘000 HK$’000 ‘000 HK$'000
TR FET F g FAETT
5,000,000 100,000 1,000,000 100,000
- - 4,000,000 =
5,000,000 100,000 5,000,000 100,000
2,051,209 41,024 306,700 30,670
- - 1,226,800 =
- - 517,709 10,354
100,000 2,000 = =
2,151,209 43,024 2,051,209 41,024
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27.

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(ii)

(i)

At a special general meeting of the Company held on 3 May 2016, a
resolution was passed to approve the share subdivision of every existing
issued and unissued shares of par value of HK$0.10 each in the share
capital of the Company subdivided into five shares of par value of
HK$0.02 each in the share capital of the Company. The share subdivision
was completed and effective on 4 May 2016.

On 19 December 2016, a holder of the convertible bonds has exercised
its conversion rights attaching to the convertible bonds with an aggregate
principal amount of HK$56,948,026 into 517,709,327 ordinary shares of
the Company at a conversion price of HK$0.11 per share.

On 25 May 2017, the Company allotted and issued an aggregate
100,000,000 new shares of HK$0.02 each to not less than six placees
at a price of HK$2.80 per share. Of the net proceeds of the placing
of HK$277,760,000, approximately HK$138,000,000 and HK$9,760,000
were used in the operation of the Electric Vehicle Business and for general
working capital purpose respectively. The remaining of approximately
HK$130,000,000 was remained unused and placed with licensed banks
in Hong Kong and the PRC.

China Trustful Group Limited F Bz &£ B ER A 7

27. BBR=&
B -

(i)

(ii)

(ii)

/42

(75

BHEARABRATEREECIOE TZE
REBERTRABTRONIFEARTIRS
R EEO0.027E L2 R D HF 4l 2 IR FE R E &
B MR2016F5 A3 RITZREFKRAE
LB - ROHFAN2016F5848 TR &
AR o

M2016F 128198 - AIRREFHAALD
178 AN & 4 %8 556,048,026/ 7T 2 Al #2
MREFFIMRRE BRARRAZ
517,709, 327TIRE @R - KABKRKRERE
& & 190117 T °

R2017F5H258 + A A 7] LA & 1%2.807%5
L2 BT DR ISR AR A RSB K&
17 & #£100,000,0000% & A% H 1E0.027% 7T
2FHBGD  HMEFEIZMEREBEFER
277,760,000 7t + E 7 £7138,000,000/%
7T %9,760,000 7T 5 A AR B & /T E
BELERAE—REEESRSE - 8T8
130,000,000 LMK BA - WHEEREH
KA B R R AR AT o



28. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 28. A AT HMBRRERBHEEH
MOVEMENT OF RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (@) EATHBRRIE

2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#ETT FAET

Non-current assets EREEE
Property, plant and equipment Y- BEREE 973 1,002
Prepayment for property, plant and W BMEREZEZ
equipment TE 3R 2,865 -
Investments in subsidiaries RHBLARMIKE 32,366 32,366
36,204 33,368
Current assets MENEE
Contingent consideration receivable FEW AR E - 7,107
Deposits, prepayments and other Re BERER
receivable H A FE W3 IE 6,093 1,103
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG E 341,267 195,458
Cash and cash equivalents HeRREEEY 130,822 10,599
478,182 214,267
Current liabilities mEBEE
Accruals and other payables EErER R EMmERS
KIE 1,575 789
Secured loan BEMER 15,000 15,000
Convertible bonds Al % (& 51,444 -
Amount due to a shareholder R — B MR FRIE 5,438 5,438
Amount due to a subsidiary e — R B AR ZKIE 4,829 3,929
78,286 25,156
Net current assets REEEZTEH 399,896 189,111
Total assets less current liabilities HMEERRDHERE 436,100 222,479
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28. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 28. AAGIMEBHRARREHEETH

MOVEMENT OF RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (&)
(Continued)
(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (@) EATHMBRRAIFT(EZ)
(Continued)
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAETT
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Convertible bonds A}k ES - 47,781
Deferred tax liability ELETIHBE 1,074 1,679
1,074 49,460
Net assets EEFH 435,026 173,019
Capital and reserves BEXRHEE
Share capital fig 7 43,024 41,024
Reserves 1 392,002 131,995
Total equity EREE 435,026 173,019
Approved on behalf of the Board of Directors on R2018F3A20B R KEE g #Ht
29 March 2018 by: o
Fei Jie Ng Chin Ming Stephen
= R R EA
Director Director
Ea EZE
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28. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 28. A AT HMBRRERBHEEH

MOVEMENT OF RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (&
(Continued)
(b) Movement of reserves of the Company (b) EASEEET

Share-
based Convertible
Share payment bonds Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total

WRHBER TRRES
RiteR  zHRER B RiER Lh)
HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
FEL fér  FEi Fér  fE1

At 1 January 2016 201641418 110,086 2,565
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year FREBRZEFBLEE - -
Recognition of equity component of convertble %A% Rk ERHERTH

2593 86720
(18296)  (18.296)

bonds - - 25,276 - 25,216
Deferred tax on convertiole bonds TARGENEEHE = = (4170) = (4170)
Conversion of convertible bonds BRhRES 53,900 = (13,086) - 40,814
Release of deferred tax upon conversion of ~ RERTAREAEEAELHE

convertible bonds - - 1,822 - 1,822
Share issuing expenses RS (i) = - - (17
At 81 December 2016 and at 1 January 2017 K016 125318 ROOTE1 A1 163,15 2565 9842 o) 13199
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year EREER2EERLE - - - (1675 (15,753
Placement of new shares REHR 278,000 = = - 278000
Share issuing expenses RS (2,240) - - - (2,240)
At 31 December 2017 12017%12R318 439,575 2,565 9,842 (9,080) 392,002
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29. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(i) Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated (i)
financial statements, during the year, the Group carried

29. EXFAEANLTRS
B AN AR & BA RS R 3} E At 209 P i
BEIN AEBAFELHEER

out the following material transactions with its related BEBATETUTERRS:
parties:
2017 2016
Nature of transaction HK$’000 HK$'000
Z5HE F & T FHET
Richmind International Investment Limited  Rental expenses
(“Richmind”) (Note (a)) 1,296 1,156
ERBBREEERARIERDM#F @) BeRAX
M BE R FT AL E M G R A A Sales of goods
(“Huzhou Brighsun”) (Note (b)) 2,119 -
HINBE KR E AR A A BEmiEE
(D8N B B D (B 22 (b))
Mr. Zhang (Note (c)) Disposal of available-for-
sale financial assets 9,000 =
BEEREMN () HEANHLEESREE
Notes: et -
(@) Richmind is a subsidiary of Data Champion Limited in which (@) & 7 A Data Champion Limited 2 Kt
members of the key management personnel of the Group, have BAR MASEFXFZEREASH
equity interest in Data Champion Limited. A Data Champion Limited ~ B&## °
(b) Mr. Zhang has material equity interest in Huzhou Brighsun. In the (o) ERERBAMNEREERBRGE
opinion of the Directors, this transaction is de minimis transaction o BERERA  URXRHBRERR
and fully exempted from shareholders’ approval, annual review KERS - BEEERR R ETGEM
and all the disclosure requirements of continuing connected ETRBIFE20FEFMEHRELAE - F
transaction as set out in Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules. EEZRBERERSINMERE
FRIE °
(©) Mr. Zhang is the executive director and a substantial shareholder () ERERBARRRNTESREEZR
of the Company. R

H E2016F12A31IB IEFE © &
AAIBRREAAEEERETF
& #912,144,00078 7T ° % B Bi &
RABRAARRFEE - ZERBPR
REERS(EHZERGEM ET R
RIE20%E) - EFRA  ARXFHBE
REBEKERS  BEHER
%8 <FGEM L1 # B 5520 % A &K
REXZNABRBERTE -

During the year ended 31 December 2016, shareholder
of the Company has contributed certain inventories with
the amount approximately HK$12,144,000 to the Group.
Such contribution was recognised as capital contribution
to the Company. The contribution was considered as a
connected transaction as defined in Chapter 20 of the
GEM Listing Rules. In the opinion of the Directors, this
transaction was de minimis transaction and was fully
exempted from the disclosure requirements of connected
transaction as set out in Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules.
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29. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
(i) Compensation of key management personnel

29. EXFEAEANTRS(E)

(i) TEEEAERHE

Included in employee benefit expenses are key EBERAMAIATATEZERE A
management personnel compensation (including BEREBEES)INEE BBEFSE

Directors), the details of which are as follows: wm
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
F & T FAET
Salaries and other allowance e R HMER 8,179 11,654
Retirement benefit schemes contributions & ¥k 18 | 51 2 1 3% 69 131
8,248 11,785
(i) Details of the balances with related parties at the end (i) RIMEHKR BEEALTZIRS
of the reporting period are set out in note 21 to the ERFIBENGEE VB HmEMN T

consolidated financial statements. 21 »
30. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 30. EEHERIE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of rented premises which fall due
as follows:

RB|ERR - AEER AT HELEH
MTARAEMENRRFEBRO M
FAEENBIHIBERET

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$'000

F#ET FE T

Within one year —FR 5,887 2,476
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FE_EZERF

(BREEREREF) 6,436 2,195

12,323 4,671

The Group leases certain properties under operating leases.
Leases are mainly negotiated for average term of three years
(2016: three to five) years. The Group does not have an option to
purchase the leased premises at the expiry of the lease period.

AEEBERBEEHERNRETME -
HEXZUFH=F(20165F : =FZEH
F)RHEEITIER o ASE W ENAE
ENERMEEEHEMENEEE -
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31. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Authorised and contracted, but not provided for:

32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION
Pursuant to a resolution passed at annual general meeting of
the Company held on 22 December 2010, the Share Option
Scheme was adopted by the Company.

The major terms of the Share Option Scheme are summarised
as follows:

(i)

(i

The purpose is to attract and retain quality personnel and
other persons to provide incentive to them to contribute
to the business and operation of the Group.

The eligible person include full time or part time
employees of the Group (including any Director, whether
executive or non-executive and whether independent or
not, or consultant of the Company or any subsidiary); any
holder of any securities issued by the Group; and any
business or joint venture partners, contractors, agents
or representatives, consultants, advisers, suppliers,
customers, licensees (including any sub-licensee),
landlords or tenants (including any sub-tenants) of the
Group or any invested entity or any person who, in the
sole discretion of the Board of Directors, has contributed
or may contribute to the Group.
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31. EXKiE

ERBREATLN  BX

B
- Purchase of property, plant and equipment -HBEME - BER
Big]
— Construction of plant and machinery - BRI E LS

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THET
716 371

- 685

716 1,056

32. LEMBERZARES
RIEBEARRFR2010F12 9228 R 172 &
REAFREBBIAZER  ARAIH
g IR RE T E o

BRES T2 EFBMAIT

(i

BRI ZENRRSIRREE
FEIRHEMAL BBERER
AEBEZEBREEERLEM -

BEBATEBRAKREZRIR
BES(BEARAHEMAMER
AZERES  TWANTES
HFATESF > T TIwBLES
RERARNRER)  AEEAHR
BIOZEMNESFZEAFTEA:
EAREREMMBRERRZE
MEBHABERH  AEH K
B R & ER - BRA HE
B EP XEABREIMER
XEA) ZFEFIEF(BREEMA
DHEBEP) HEFSEHEBIBR
ECE KA M ANE B ELE R
ZAERAL -



(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

The total number of shares in respect of which share
options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
shall not exceed 10% of the issued shares capital of the
Company at any point in time, without prior approval
from the Company's shareholders. The number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
share option granted and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme
shall not exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the share options granted to each participant
or grantee (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
share options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1% of the shares in issue from time to time unless the
same is approved by the shareholders.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the share options granted to each
substantial shareholder (as defined in the GEM Listing
Rules) of the Company or any of its respective associates
or an independent non-executive Director or any of
his associates (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding share options) in the 12-month period up
to and including the date of such grant: (a) representing
in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares in issue; and (b)
having an aggregate value, based on the closing price of
the shares at the date of each grant, in excess of HK$5
million, unless the same is approved by the shareholders.

The exercisable period should be determined by the
Board of Directors upon grant of the share option but in
any event should not exceed 10 years from the date of
offer for grant.

Save as determined by the Board of Directors provided in
the offer of the grant of the relevant share options, there
is no general requirement that a share option must be
held for any minimum period before it can be exercised.

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

IMAREARARBIRELIE - B
BB B AR 2 B
Frs Rk 2 BRI BB BBAAR
AN EHETRAZ210% - BT
£ A AR B B B AT 8 AR A&
il i AR R =1 81 2 &% il i R AT {2
ZBEREMBITZBRMDEE - T
BHRARRAATKREETREZ
30% °

BRIEEGRRIE  REM+Z
BEARETER2EBEL AR A
ZEREBREETE EFHER
R ARTT R I HE) BTl 2 3%
TRERTZRNDEBTFES
TREHETRMZ1% °

REZEHEREBHEEZA)
IEZ2+=ZHARREARREEZE
DR R(FEH RGEM EM R AI) sk
HEMES M E A B ZIENTT
EEHAMBEABR 2BR
E(BREETE - B REART
FRERE)BTERESBITRE
FRITZBROBE: @& HTE
BBARARBEBEITRNZ01% &
L) REFAELBHAQR KRG
ZWHERE BEETSER
5,000,000 7T  BRIFES R R
A e

TEHBEESe RN R BERER
RE - BREEBRT  TNEB
BER L HEHEI0E -

BREEFERARTERREHIEMR
BEEREZARTEN  LEMRE
BERERTENARAEZRER
/H]q o
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32.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION

(Continued)

(viii)  Offer of options shall be open for acceptance in writing
or by telex received by the secretary of the Company for
a period of 21 days inclusive of, and from, the date of
grant.

(ix)  The subscription price of a share option must be the
highest of:

a. the closing price of a share of the Company on the
Stock Exchange on the date of grant of the option;

b. the average closing price of a share of the Company
from the 5 business days immediately preceding the
date of grant of the option; and

G the nominal value of a share of the Company on
the date of grant of the option.

(X)  The Share Option Scheme is effective for 10 years from
the date of adoption of such scheme (ie. effective until
21 December 2020).

At the end of the reporting period and as at the date of
this annual report, the number of shares in respect of which
may be issued upon exercise of share options granted and
remain outstanding under the Share Option Scheme was
37,500,000 (2016: 37,500,000), representing 1.7% (2016: 1.8%)
of the shares of the Company in issue at those dates. These
options were granted by the Company on 27 May 2015 and
are exercisable from 27 May 2015 to 26 May 2018 (both dates
inclusive). Further details of the share options granted are
discussed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” of the
Directors’ Report in this annual report.
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32. UIRGBIABRZHARXH(E)

(vii) FEREATHE L AL (BFE%A)
A2 ESR - ZRS A BN
E e REYNCIE -2 )y
BRI AESR -

(ix) BREZABELASATEE
ZEREE:

a. RERERLBEHARRE
P B A7 FE B 52 P 2 W T 8

b, BEMBRIEE LA B AISE
ERARRAERBH LT
S THE R

c. REBRERLAHARAE
Bt 2 EfE °

ERESE NN ZTE B
+ F R A KB E =220209F12 8
2IH—EHEA) -

=

RMEHRRRANFRAL - RIBZBEK
REETEIE B R ARITE 2 BAREETT
B I g2 3 17,2 IR 17 8L B /37,500,000
% (20164F : 37,500,0000%) * +B & R A&
REIRNZEABMZBEHITRHZ21.7%
(20164 : 1.8%) - Z EFHERETIHAR
A R2015F 5827 H R H + I A20154F
5A278 £2018F5A826B (B E 8 E M
BB AT - FREEREEREDN
E—THBRAFRESSHREER
REEEI—8iET o



32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION 32. LMW ABERZHEZ®SHE)

33.

(Continued)
Detail of specific categories of share option is as follows:

BhlER TR ZFBOT

Number of share options
BRENE

Outstanding at

31 December
Outstanding at 2016 and at Outstanding at
1 January Adjustment 1 January Granted Exercised Lapsed 31 December
2016 for the year 2017 during the year  during the year  during the year 2017
12016 1#2016512A318 2017
1A18 R2017£1R18 12A318
Share option type BREEE i AT RERTR i AT REREY RENTTE RERKH i AT
2015 20158 7,500,000 30,000,000 37,500,000 = = = 37,500,000

Exercisable at the end RERTIE

of the year 37,500,000 37,500,000
Weighted average evercise ~ METH7TEE HK$1.170 Ni HKS$0.234 Nil Nil Ni HK$0.234
price 117057 & 0.234% T & i & 0.234i T

No share options under the Share Option Scheme were granted
or exercised during the years ended 31 December 2017 and
2016.

At the date of grant, the exercise price of the share options was
HK$1.17. The exercise price was adjusted to HK$0.234 following
the share subdivision on 4 May 2016.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks which
result from the use of financial instruments in its ordinary
course of operations. The financial risks include market risk
(mainly foreign currency risk), credit risks and liquidity risk.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in the notes
below. The Group’s overall risk management focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.
Risk management is carried out by key management under the
policies approved by the Directors. The Group does not have
written risk management policies. However, the Directors and
senior management of the Group meet regularly to identify and
evaluate risks and to formulate strategies to manage financial
risks on timely and effective manner. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies applied by the
Group to mitigate these risks are set out below.

33.

H 20174 M2016F12 A31B IEF & -
WEBEREREBRESSIRDHIT
f& o

RIFHBEH  BREZITEERIATE
JC ° R2016F5 4B EITIR (D IFAE -
ITEBRHEE0.2348 T °

LHEBEERRATEHITE

AKRERAREAEXRBERETERS
MTAMARZHETRER /A
REEMZRER(EERIINERR) 5
ERBEADECRER BHEESET
BERFBERATHERRE - AREH
ERRREEETREBMENTH
BRMERB D BESAEESERE
MEETHNZE RREEATEE
EERBEFHENBKET AL
B EEEERERREK - T8 &
ERAEESREEABESRE@IN
B Bl B wT Ak L B A % ) S R RE DA K B
REYHWERSRER BZEFEER
T AR R R KA S B 5 A LREE
BHERBROBREINAT -

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 HE#§

151



33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
Categories of financial assets and financial liabilities
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities recognised in the consolidated statement of

33. LREBERRAFEHETEE)

EHEERSMABHEE
AEERREMRERSBBRRER
ERNEREEREBRABENKREE

financial position at the end of the reporting period categorised DEIT
as follows:
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Financial assets SRMEE
Available-for-sale financial assets AtHESREE 3,122 9,000
Financial assets at fair value through profit X A FEFAERZ 2 &/
or loss: BE:
— Contingent consideration receivable - B ARE - 7107
Loans and receivables: B e RIE
— Trade receivables - B S EINIE 381,714 72,706
— Deposits paid and other receivables - B RS & H MWK 58,903 14,605
- Amount due from a related company - E— AR E QR R - 126
— Amount due from a director - Bl —REENIE 9,018 -
- Cash and cash equivalents -BeRBEEEY 293,853 127,722
746,610 231,266
Financial liabilities ERIBE
Financial liabilities measured at amortised 4% £ $5 Ak 4571 BR A9 & @b
cost: BfE:
- Trade and other payables - B R E AR A 127,473 52,578
- Secured loan - BIRWEXR 15,000 15,000
- Amount due to a shareholder - B — R ERIEAE 5,438 5,438
— Amounts due to non-controlling interests ~ — F&{~t 3F 4% A% 4 25 7B 118 105
— Amounts due to related companies - ERIERARI A 7,242 9,592
— Convertible bonds - AR EH 51,444 47,781
206,715 130,494
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33.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE 33.

MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

The Group operates in Hong Kong and PRC and majority of
transactions are denominated in HK$, USD and RMB. Foreign
exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities, which are denominated in a
currency that is not the functional currency of the Group.

At the end of each reporting period, the carrying amounts of
the monetary assets and liabilities of the Group, which are
denominated in foreign currencies, are as follows:

ERMEREERAFEFERE)

AEERBERTELEERR - BXZ
BRXHAET ETRARKEE-
SMNERBAARARERS  CHEREE
REBEMEL  WAREEINEEE KA
SN E RS ETME ©

REREHR  AEEEBEERAR
B EREEHAINEFHE - #HWT

Liabilities Assets
BfE
2017 2016 2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET F#ET FE T
RMB AR 647 1,804 63,482 20,639
UsD ETT 936 1,616 42,271 42,088

The Group is mainly exposed to the foreign currency risk of
RMB against HK$. Since HKS$ is pegged to USD, the Group
does not expect any significant movement in USD/HK$
exchange rate and this is excluded from the sensitivity analysis
below. Management will monitor foreign exchange exposure to
mitigate the foreign currency risk.

The Group currently do not have a foreign currency hedging
policy in respect of assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currency. The Group will monitor its foreign currency exposure
closely and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

AEBITEAZARELETHINGEG
R o B TEETHE  NEE
BHETAETEXRTGHRERE
8 Rt RBAEREE NIIBREDN -
EEERERIERRUREINER

& o
ZN

AEEBEY BELIASNNEFENEE
REESENEE PEER - AEEH
BUERIIERE YHEBERNEH
2R HIPERIMERR
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33.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a
5% increase and decrease in HK$ against RMB. 5% is
the sensitivity rate used which represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the end of the reporting period for
a 5% change in foreign currency rates. A negative number
below indicates an increase in pre-tax profit where HK$ weaken
5% against RMB. For a 5% strengthening of HK$ against the
relevant currency, there would be an equal and opposite impact
on the loss and the balances below would be positive.

RVB AR

Management considered the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign currency risk as the
exposure at the end of each reporting period does not reflect
the exposure during the year.

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk relates primarily to
variable rate borrowings (note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements for the details of secured loan). The Group’s income
and operating cash flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates. The Group currently does not
have an interest rate hedging policy. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.
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33.

ERMEREERRAFENERE)

BB EST
TRHAMBINAEEHETEARYE
THER B2 E5% 2 HEE © 5% 2 BURE
EREEBHINEERAEREZES
FHfh - UREDITEREAINESE
ZHAXNERIER YR REHR]
SNEE E R ZB5%EE L HAE - TII&
BB T AR E5%F - B AT
BMEIEMERE - HETHEBER
THES% - RIS U TEBERERELSE
BEZHERTE -

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET TET
3,142 942

EEERS HREREHARZER
RERRANEFEEZ AR HBEEED
THBEEINERRTARRKE -

AEBAAX ZHXRARIZSRZE
HEEFREERERFEFLHRS
B mAME24) c AEBEZ WA KK
EBRERMEER EARZMIGHREBHH
FE o NEE BRI BRI R LRI
B R EEESERNEAR X
BEMBERZBE NEAMNXERE -



Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments
at the end of each reporting period. The analysis is prepared
assuming the financial instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis
points (2016: 50 basis points) increase or decrease is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2016: 50 basis points)
higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s pre-tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2017
would decrease/increase by approximately HK$75,000 (2016:
HK$75,000). This is mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure
to interest rates on its variable rate of borrowings.

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a financial
instrument would fail to discharge its obligation under the terms
of the financial instrument and cause a financial loss to the
Group.

At 31 December 2017, the Group had certain concentration
of credit risk as 98% (2016: 96%) of the trade receivables of
the Group were due from top five customers. Management
considered the credit risk is limited since the Group only
trade with customers and provide a loan to customers with an
appropriate credit history and good reputation. Management
monitored the financial background and creditability of those
debtors on an ongoing basis.

The Group’s policy to manage credit risk is to deal only with
credit worthy counterparties. In order to minimise the credit
risk, the management of the Group has formulated a credit
policy and, delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is take.

BB E AT
TXHBEEIWIBIESREHARIE
PMTETENERBRET - ZoWHR
HHREHARAMABEEZEHMIARSE
FAREEERE - 50E 2 (20164 : 50
EE)EASTHRRAAEZEEREAERN
HREFERBREER TAEHEE
HAESEAIE B AFTIS o

fir ¥ = _EF T B#50E 2 (20164F : 50
HE) MABEMEHERZTTE - Al
REBEREE2017F12A31HIEFER
BR B4 Al A& R D 18 AN 49 75,0007 7T
(20164 : 75,000/ 7T) © W TIEZEHR
AEEBARZZEEBEFN KRR -

EERRESBITANY T RE
TERTAFRFRBATHNEETLEHRA
SERZHMBUIERNER

R2017512A831H - ERAEBEZ 5 [E
U R IEH98% (20164F : 96%) A& fE I
ABEFEHRE BWAEBEEETEES
FRR BERASEERAEGHEERE
BB kRTBENERPR W ME
RIEEN  TEERAEERRAR -
EEEREERZSEBANT S
SR{EE8 -

AEEEEFERROBRARER
RARENHFIRS - REEREEE
R AEBERESHIEEERR
TEZREGKEEEEEERE  #H
EEMETHEMAEERF  UERR
HIRETH -
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33.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

The Group deposited its cash and bank balances with approved
and reputable banks. Bankruptcy or insolvency of the banks
may cause the Group’s right with respect to cash and cash
equivalents held to be delayed or limited. Management of the
Company monitors the credit rating of these banks on an
ongoing basis, and considers that the Group’s exposure to
credit risk at 31 December 2017 and 2016 were minimal.

The credit policies have been followed by the Group since prior
years and are considered to have been effective in limiting the
Group’s exposure to credit risk to a desirable level.

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will not be able
to meet its obligations associated with its financial liabilities
that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.
The Group is exposed to liquidity risk in respect of settlement
of trade payables and its financing obligations, and also in
respect of its cash flow management. The Group’s objective is
to maintain an appropriate level of liquid assets and committed
lines of funding to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

The liquidity policies have been followed by the Group since
prior years and considered by management of the Company to
have been effective in managing liquidity risks.

Analysed below is the Group’s remaining contractual maturities
for its financial liabilities at 31 December 2017 and 2016. When
the creditor has a choice of when the liability is settled, the
liability is included on the basis of the earliest date on when
the Group can be required to pay.

Where the settlement of the liability is in instalments, each
instalment is allocated to the earliest period in which the Group
is committed to pay.
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

FAIR VALUE 33. 2RlEMEERBRAFENEEZE)

REBAREM(E)

At 31 December 2017

R2017412F318
Interest ~ Within one Total
rate  year or on Within ~ More than undiscounted Carrying
% demand 2-5 years 5 years amount amount
—ERE
FIE% REXRE WERLER AENRE RERAH FREf{E
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Non-derivative financial liabilities EliELHER
Trade and other payables BoREMERTE - 127,473 - - 127,473 127,473
Secured loan BERER 6 15,089 - - 15,089 15,000
Amount due to a shareholder BN —2REHE - 5,438 - - 5,438 5,438
Amounts due to non-controling interests & f FE AR 25 7R - 118 - - 118 118
Amounts due to related companies ENBERARE - 7,242 - - 7,242 7,242
Convertible bonds R ES 7.41 53,052 - - 53,052 51,444
Total @5t 208,412 - - 208,412 206,715
At 31 December 2016
12016512 A31H
Interest Within one Total
rate year or on Within More than  undiscounted Carrying
% demand 2-5 years 5 years amount amount
—ERY
FIE% REXE WEREA RENE  RURAE REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Non-derivative financial liabilities HFlTEZRER
Trade and other payables B5 R EM TR = 52,578 - - 52,578 52,578
Secured loan BERER 6 15,089 = = 15,089 15,000
Amount due to a shareholder N —2RRHA = 5,438 = = 5438 5,438
Amounts due to non-controling interests & f JF #E A i 25 FUA = 105 = = 105 105
Amounts due to related companies BB E DRI = 9,592 - - 9,592 9,592
Convertible bonds R ES 74 = 53,052 = 53,052 47,781
Total B 82,802 53,062 - 135,854 130,494
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33.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

° the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
with standard terms and conditions and traded in active
markets are determined with reference to quoted market
bid prices and ask prices respectively;

o the fair values of derivative instruments are calculated
using quoted prices. When such prices are not available,
a discounted cash flow analysis is performed using the
applicable yield curve for the duration of the instruments
for non-optional derivatives, and option pricing models for
optional derivatives; and

o the fair values of other financial assets and financial
liabilities (excluding those described above) are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recognised in the consolidated
financial statements approximate to their fair values, except
for the liability of convertible bonds, the fair value of the
liability component of convertible bonds is approximately
HK$52,034,000 (2016: HK$48,968,000) at 31 December 2017.
The fair value of liability component of convertible bonds is
measured using discounted cash flows method in which all
significant inputs are directly or indirectly based on observable
market data, thus classified level 2 in fair value measurement.
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33.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting
period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13 Fair Value
Measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified and determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique
as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: fair value measured using only Level 1
inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date;

o Level 2 valuations: fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are input for which market date are
not available; and

° Level 3 valuations: fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs.

33.

EREBEERATEFEE)

TRENAEERRERRZERTE
EFENEMTANRFE - ZFE
MITAEDEATEMBRELEASE
13/ A FlEFEMREN =R FE
o AEE2E[ERMARBOE
ANENABEREERE2E  BRF
BEAENBERBERATEERR:

s FAMhE EERFE-RBAE
(MEREEXBBEHEFTERRE
BHENREHERE) RS
NFE:

s X AMBEERAEF-_ABAE
(MRZFE-—RWAIBRBGAE)
BREFAEANTABERGA
BRFERFE - TABEEHA
BERERRMSHENHAE:
K

s F-RFHE:FRAEXNITAER
R ABERFEAFE-

ANNUAL REPORT F R



33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE 33. 2FlEREERAFEHIE(E)
MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

Quoted prices

in active market for Significant
identical Significant other unobservable
assets  observable inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
HEEE EYN E-UN
& BT 5 B w8 R TAEER
ZH(E BAHE BARE
(BE—&) (BE=@) (B=#%) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
At 31 December 2016 R2016F12 8318
Fair value on a recurring basis HEEEETEZ
AFE
Financial assets at fair value through RATFEGABRZ
profit or loss: FREE:
- Contingent consideration - BRHARE
receivable - - 7,107 7,107
As described in note 18 to the consolidated financial statement, 4R & B 75 SRR M sE 18T # 58 - B
the fair value of contingent consideration receivable in relation W B Core Kingdom £ & &9 & Yz s A
to the acquisition of Core Kingdom Group are measured at BAFENZERREEFZ L&
fair value under expected present value method and take into ARENREZEBANER . FIEAA
consideration of whether the Profit Guarantee is probable to BEEN T B R AZEA)=ER
be fulfilled. The unobservable inputs used in respect of the BHTEEARRBNEDR{H =ZETR
valuation are (i) expected future profitability for three scenarios BN TH R A EE ) DB °

and (ii) probability distribution of three different conditions.

The fair value measurement is negatively correlated to the ATEFEEBREEREMNBARMNTE
expected profitability of Tong Yin and its subsidiary. AN hZEEBHBEEE -
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33.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

The Directors had engaged Ascent Partners to determine
the fair value of contingent consideration receivable as
at 31 December 2016 by adopting appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of a financial asset, the Directors
worked closely with Ascent Partners to establish the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs to the model. The management
of the Company reported the findings to the Directors at the
end of the reporting period to explain the cause of fluctuations
in fair value of the financial asset.

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in
determining the fair value of contingent consideration receivable
are disclosed above.

The following table presents the changes in contingent

33.

ERMEREERAFEFERE)

EFCZBEVABRBRMNEEATE
SFEEESEREASE - R20165612
ASIRE TR UAREZAFE -

REEEREEQAFER EFANE
BEREANAHIBAEENMGESE
R ABE AREIERERREH
RABREHRER  UFHAZTRME
ERNFERBHHREA -

RETE BB HARERFERERROMG
BHARBABIEREMN EXHE -

TRENDERE=ZRIAZRENK

consideration receivable which are classified as level 3 ARERE S :
instruments:

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FE T
At 1 January M1A1H 7,107 8,382
Compensation from profit guarantee i B R 38 2 f/ 18 (2,596) =
Loss arising on fair value change REEEHEECEE (4,511) (1,275)
At 31 December ®12 8318 - 7,107

During the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers
into or out of Level 3.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and out of fair
value hierarchy levels as of the date of the events or change in
circumstances that caused the transfer.

HE2017FE K20165FE12 A31H IEEE -
F—MME Mo EYEEE I E
ERTERHE=R -

AEENBRRANSIRER 2EMHK

BEREHARERLFEER ZHEH
BAREWH -
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33.

34.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

Due to the variety of basis of determination used in profit
forecast, it is not practicable to provide any meaningful
sensitivity in relation to the critical assumptions concerning
future profitability of acquired business and the potential impact
on the fair value change on contingent consideration receivable
at 31 December 2016.

However, if the probability of worst and best scenarios is 10%
lower or higher and the probability of normal scenarios is 20%
lower or higher, the resulting impact to the fair value change
of contingent considerations receivable are within 5%. If the
expected profit after tax of the acquired business is 20%
lower or higher, the resulting impact to the fair value change of
contingent consideration receivables are within 30%.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern and
to provide an adequate return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall
strategy remains unchanged during the current and prior years.

The Group is not subject to any external imposed capital
requirements.

The Directors review the capital structure on annual basis. As
part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of capital and
the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on the
recommendations of the directors of the Company, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through payment of
dividends, issue of new shares or repurchase of existing shares
as well as issue of new debts or the redemption of existing
debts.

China Trustful Group Limited F Bz &£ B ER A 7
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34.

35.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as
follows:

34. HFEER(A)

RBEERRZEERBLENT

Total debts (Note)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents

Net cash R e F
Equity attributable to owners of the Company

Total debts to equity ratio

Note: Total debts include secured loan and convertible bonds in notes 24 and

25 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

BB RBHZ)

ARmEEANEEER

B AR S e b R

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAETT
66,444 62,781
(293,853) (127,722)
(227,409) (64,941)
603,549 226,312
1% 28%

Kz EBEES I BREARMBMRM 4R
MizE2sFT it B M E R KA R E S -

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 35. RMiEEFEIEEMERBEHER
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising TRFLAEBREMETHNERE
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash 23 PREASKIFRSEY  @E
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for EEMEANBENAREREME
which cash flows were or future cash flows will be classified SIARBEREBLAEBGZERER
in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash ERFLEARETHMELANERS
flows from financing activities. mE °
Convertible
bonds Secured loan Total
ik ES FRAER @st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET F#ET F#ET
At 1 January 2017 R20174181H 47,781 15,000 62,781
Interest expenses recognised BERERIMERX 3,663 900 4,563
Financing cash outflows BER SR = (900) (900)
At 31 December 2017 2017%£12H31H 51,444 15,000 66,444
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36. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
The following table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results
of the year or assets of the Group. To give details of the other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in

particulars of excessive length.

Name of subsidiary incorporation
at i Rk 3
WEAS&E wE/ER

Ampress Merchandising  Hong Kong
Limited

7l

MEEXARAT] Bk

Ampress Packaging Asia  Hong Kong
Limited
MEBE(EMERAR &FE

7l

Core Kingdom Limited ~ BVI
Core Kingdom Limited ~ #BREZEHE

Display & Packaging Hong Kong

Limited

Display & Packaging X
Limited

EC Pacific Limited Hong Kong

7l

ER(KFHBRAE  FR

China Trustful Group Limited F Bz &£ B ER A 7

Class of share/
Place/country of registered
capital held
BHERN/®E
wWEREE

Ordinary

EREK

Ordinary

EREK

Ordinary
LAk

Ordinary

Ordinary

EREK

Issued and
fully paid
share capital/
registered
capital
EETRARE
kx/EREF

HK$100,000

100,000/ 7T
HK$500,000
500,000 7T

USD50,000
50,000% 7T

HK$300,000

300,000 7

HK$500,000

500,0007% 7T

36.

Bt B 2 B 5 1R

REBEEFZER  TRAIIRZARTA
MEBERR  REBFEAFEIEENX
BRASBEEETERY - RIEES
ZERIHEMMBEAR 2FIEAE
FEEBRITE

Proportion
of ownership
interest and voting
power held by
the Company
FATRALHAR

4

RER#

2017 2016

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal activities
and place
of operations

TREBRESHE

Trading of watches, costume
jewelries and accessories in
Hong Kong

REBEEER AEREREH

Trading of display and packaging
products in Hong Kong
REBEERIIRBEM

Investment holding
REER

Trading of display and packaging
products in Hong Kong
REREERIIREEM

Trading of watches and accessories
in Hong Kong
REBEEEEREMH



PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 36. MBATFIR

Issued and Proportion
fully paid of ownership
Class of share/  share capital/ interest and voting Principal activities
Place/country of registered registered power held by  and place
Name of subsidiary incorporation  capital held capital the Company of operations
& it A 3 BRBER/BE ERTRER FLIARHZAEE
HWEASEH B/ ER HEMREX kx/EREF BRBIRBEE IEEBREERE
2016
Powerwell Pacific BV Ordinary USD800 100% 100% Investment holding
Powerwell Pacific EERZEE LBER 800X T REER
Runhao Technology (HK) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited
BERR(ER)BRRR &A LER 10,0007% 7 RERR
State Achieve BVI Ordinary USD1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Investments Limited
State Achieve RERLES LAk e REER
Investments Limited
International Faith Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKD1 100% 100% Sale of rechargeable batteries,
electric vehicles and related
products
AR EEFRAA X Lk BT HEREN ETHABRAEER
Ecological Green United Kingdom  Ordinary 1,000 100% - Manufacture and design of electric
Transportation Limited Pound sterling vehicles and related products
Ecological Green B Rl 1,000% EERFZHEYTENEEER
Transportation Limited
HIRRELELE  The PRC Registered RMB10,000,000 51% 51% Retail and wholesale of luxury brand
BRAF silverwares, silver utensils and
luxury goods in the PRC
MIBRECELE  PE EEall AE¥ RPEREZERMBEES RIER
BRARA 10,000,000 % REEAREGMH
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36.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

MEBASEH

EREREEE
BRDR

]

LBREREEE
AR

MMREREER
ERAF (Note)

MHBEREER
BRAR (ML)

WNERESTE
BB AT (Notg)

BN ERE DS

BRARA ML)

AR EDE

AR

BHEREDIE
ARAA

Note:

Place/country of registered

incorporation
& it A 3
B/ ER

The PRC

FE

The PRC

PE

The PRC

FE

The PRC

FE

Wholly foreign-owned enterprise

Issued and

fully paid

Class of share/  share capital/
registered

capital held capital
BRBER/BE EBROTRERE
HEREE kx/#EREX
Registered RMB2,000,000
A} AR®
2,000,0007T

Registered HK$40,000,000
Bl 40,000,000 7
Registered HK$100,000,000
i 100,000,000/ 7T
Registered RMB10,000,000
Eaall ARE
10,000,0007T

China Trustful Group Limited F Bz &£ B ER A 7

36. MtEBASIFHIR (4

Proportion
of ownership
interest and voting
power held by
the Company

FAERBLMER

LBl R iR R E

2017 2016

51% 51%

100% 100%
100% 100%
100% -

Principal activities
and place
of operations

TREBRESHE

Retail and wholesale of luxury brand
silverwares and silver utensils in
the PRC

RPEARETERMEES RIRR
# REEAR

Retail and wholesale of luxury brand
silverwares and silver utensils in
the PRC

RPEREZERMBEES RIER
- REEAR

Research and development,
manufacture and sale of
rechargeable batteries, electric
vehicles and related products
and provision of related services
in the PRC

RPEHRE FERBERED
ETERABEDARRAM
AR

Research and development,
manufacture and sale of
rechargeable batteries, electric
vehicles and related products
and provision of related services
in the PRC

RPERE £ERBERED
EHERRER A RR A
AR

Bret: 2ONVEDE



36.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continueqd)

Except for Core Kingdom Limited, Powerwell Pacific and
State Achieve Investments Limited which are directly held by
the Company, all other subsidiaries are indirectly held by the
Company.

The following table lists out the information relating to
Tong Yin and its subsidiary, a subsidiary of the Group with
material non-controlling interests. The summarised financial
information presented below represents the amounts before any
intercompany elimination.

Place of incorporation
and principal place of

Name of subsidiary business

=F M Bk 3L 3t B &
MEBASZHE FTEEEME,
Tong Yin The PRC
R a2
FERERETIE AR AQF (Note) The PRC
FEREREETBERADE (ML) H

Note: LEHIREREELAFMAF is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Tong Yin
(together with Tong Yin referred to as the “Tong Yin Group”).

36.

Bt B A T 18 (42
ExCore Kingdom Limited + Powerwell Pacific
Kz State Achieve Investments Limited B 282
BIEERE - A HMMERRHBEAR
AfEERA -

TREBNEHEBREEMBAR (K&
EHEEAFERBENHNBRR)Z
Bf e UT2IZHBERMEZER
EREA AR E Y HEAZ S8R

Proportion of
ownership interest
and voting right held by
non-controlling interests
ERERFAZ
FREHELL Bl R i 4

2017 2016
49% 49%
49% 49%

Fiet: EBREREERBRARASBRCER

BR - REAIAREEDZ2EZEWBER
7 o
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36. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 36. MBATFEZ)
Tong Yin Group HBREE

2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#ETT TET

Current assets MBNE E 113,421 100,562
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,674 3,674
Current liabilities mEAE (14,822) (39,572)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE - -
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AN &) # A A J&{h #E 25 51,138 32,978
Non-controlling interests FE1E AR o 49,133 31,686
Revenue N 69,252 75,749
Expenses 53 (39,740) (47,315)
Profit attributable to owners of the Company ZN2 71HE B A FE1G i A 15,052 14,501
Profit attributable to non-controlling interests — 3F 422 A% # 25 & 15 % £ 14,460 13,933
Profit for the year F & F 29,512 28,434
Other comprehensive income/(loss) IN/NEIE PN K =i

attributable to owners of the Company 2 (EE) 3,109 (1,971)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) JET R o PR E A

attributable to non-controlling interests 2 (EE) 2,987 (1,893)

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the ~ FREME2E U, (EE)
year 6,096 (3,864)

Total comprehensive income attributable to AR GIHEAAEMGEE

owners of the Company U %5 4858 18,161 12,530
Total comprehensive income attributable to  FE# J 4 &5 E/E 2 E

non-controlling interests U %5 4858 17,447 12,040
Total comprehensive income for the year FRE2HEW S B 35,608 24,570
Net cash generated from operating activites A& & EBE LIRS /FHE 48,398 17,796

Net cash generated from/(used in) investing & & & & E £/ (Fr ) &Y
activities ReFHE 3 (2,089)

Net cash inflow HERAFHE 48,401 15,707
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The Group entered into the following major non-cash investing
and financing activities which were not reflected in the
consolidated statement of cash flows:

@)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
had completed the acquisition of the Sale Assets (i.e.
property, plant and equipment and interest in leasehold
land) with the amounts of approximately HK$98,806,000
and HK$21,362,000 respectively, which was estimated by
the Directors in reference to the valuations prepared by
Ascent Partners, were satisfied by issuance of convertible
bonds with principal amount of HK$110,000,000.

The equity component of the convertible bonds is
measured as the difference between the fair value of the
Sale Assets and the liability component of the convertible
bonds in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, a shareholder
contributed certain inventories with the amount of
approximately HK$12,144,000 to the Group.

On 19 December 2016, 517,709,327 shares were allotted
and issued upon the conversion of convertible bonds with
the principal amount of HK$56,948,026 at the conversion
price of HK$0.11 per share by a holder of the convertible
bonds.

On 8 November 2017, the Group served the exercise
notice on Mr. Zhang to exercise the put option right
attached to the available-for-sale financial assets, and
require Mr. Zhang to purchase the subject shares at
the consideration of HK$9,000,000. The proceed was
unsettled and had been included in amount due from a
director.

AEBBETTIINERFRERER
MERY ZFTEPLERNGEARE
mER AR

@)

HE2016F12A31H LEE &
£ E 5 5l LA & 58 4998,806,000/%
JT }% 21,362,000 7T 5E Ak UK B 45
EEEBYE - BEREZHEIU
RHETER) 528
HESLEVAMGE 2HE
et WEBRETAEER
110,000,000/% 7T 2 7] # % (& %
AT o

RIBEE B S W|E ERIFE25% X
BT FE - AR BB 25 B A
SO NEGFEEEAFEER
BEREFBERY 2O E G

H o
ZAr

NE E2016F 128318 [FF E -
—ZRRANEBRERETFE
#712,144,0007 7t °

R2016F12 8198 » 7] 2 j% & 5
BAEANEGROIE T2 IRE
30 K ¥ 556,948,026 75 7T 2
AR E 1% - 517,709,327 8% i
0 & Br 2% e 31T -

R2017511H8H » REERE L
AEBETEBRMNE  ATEAH
HESREEMM 20 %
A E 3k E 5L A LA {E9,000,0005%
TREEZENRG - ZFSRIER
REEBEFARBK—RZESEN
1 o
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38. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
On 6 February 2018, the Company signed another
supplemental loan agreement to further extend the repayment
date of the secured loan to another 3 months from the extended
repayment date.

39. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29 March
2018.
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL

SUMMARY

For the year ended 31 December 2017

Results

Revenue

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year from
continuing operations

x4

WA

B P 15 15 A1 )4t A
P15 5 5 X

FRBEQEREL
23

Profit/(loss) for the year from FRD K IF QL EEEL

discontinued operation

Profit for the year

Profit/(loss) for the year
attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

2w (EER)

F M A

FRRMERTN,(BE)

RRBHEBA
FEIE S

LFEHHEHE

& Z2017F12A31H IF F/ZF
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Gl HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
F#E T FAE T FAE T FETT FE T
588,544 303,268 222,647 158,128 127,808
132,668 39,080 20,864 9,491 21,967
(40,986) (14,819) (11,798) (2,974) (718)
91,682 24,261 9,066 6,517 21,249
- - - 282 (5,685)
91,682 24,261 9,066 6,799 15,564
77,222 10,328 (1,664) 6,799 15,564
14,460 13,933 10,730 - -
91,682 24,261 9,066 6,799 15,564
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL EFFEHHERE

As at 31 December 2017 FR2017F12H31H
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Ll HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FETT FE T FE T FET FET
Assets and liabilities EEREGE
Total assets mEE 905,493 402,797 224,463 65,992 113,979
Total liabilities BeE (252,811)  (144,799)  (62,262) (41,815)  (60,024)
652,682 257,998 162,201 24177 53,955
Equity attributable to: TFA T RS R
Owners of the Company RATHEAA 603,549 226,312 142,555 24177 53,955
Non-controlling interests FEE R 49,133 31,686 19,646 - -

652,682 257,998 162,201 24177 53,955
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